COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY

BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

In the Matter of:

THE ELECTRONIC APPLICATION OF MEADE COUNTY )

RURAL ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE CORPORATION )

FOR A GENERAL ADJUSTMENT OF RATES ) Case No.
PURSUANT TO STREAMLINED PROCEDURE PILOT ) 2020-00131
PROGRAM ESTABLISHED IN CASE NO. 2018-00407 )

APPLICATION

Comes now Meade County Rural Electric Cooperative Corporation (“Meade County™), by
counsel, pursuant to KRS 278.180, 807 KAR 5:001 Sections 14 and 16, the Commission’s
December 11, 2018 Order in Case No. 2018-00407, and other applicable law, and for its
Application requesting a general adjustment of its existing rates, respectfully states as follows:

1. Meade County is a not-for-profit, member-owned, rural electric distribution
cooperative corporation duly organized and existing under KRS Chapter 279. Meade County is
engaged in the business of distributing retail electric power to approximately 30,000 members in
the Kentucky counties of Breckinridge, Grayson, Hancock, Hardin, Meade and Ohio.

2. Pursuant to 807 KAR 5:001 Section 14(1), Meade County’s address is 1351
Highway 79, P.O. Box 489, Brandenburg, K'Y 40108-0489. Meade County’s address for electronic
mail service is mlittrel@mcrecc.com. This Application, including the Exhibits attached hereto
and incorporated herein, contain fully the facts on which Meade County’s request for relief is
based, and an Order from the Commission granting the rate adjustment proposed herein is

requested, consistent with KRS 278.180 and other applicable law.



3. Pursuant to 807 KAR 5:001 Section 14(2), Meade County was incorporated in the
Commonwealth of Kentucky on June 4, 1937, and hereby attests that it is currently in good
standing in Kentucky.

4. Meade County’s last base rate case was filed in Case No. 2013-00033 In the Matter
of: Application Of Meade County Rural Electric Cooperative Corporation For A General
Adjustment Of Rates And A Flow-Through Of Big Rivers Electric Corporation's Rate Increase.
The base rate changes stemming from that case went into effect less than ten years ago, on October
29, 2013, following their approval by the Commission.! Since that time, Meade County’s margins
from energy sales have declined, while purchased power and other costs of conducting business
have increased. Despite close management supervision to minimize cost-escalation, overall
expenses in almost every aspect of Meade County’s operation have increased.

5. In order to address Meade County’s current undesirable financial condition, the
cooperative’s Board of Directors, in conjunction with its management, has determined that a
general adjustment of retail rates is necessary. Consistent with KRS 278.030(1), Meade County
seeks Commission approval to demand, collect and receive fair, just and reasonable rates for the
services it provides; specifically, Meade County seeks approval to increase its annual revenues by
$1,404,525, or 2.6%, to achieve an Operating Times Interest Earned Ration (“OTIER”) of 1.85.
Meade County bases its proposed rates on a twelve-month historical test period ending December

31, 2019, which is the same period covered by its most recent annual report filed with the

! Shortly thereafter, Meade County adjusted base rates to pass through the wholesale increase granted to Big Rivers
Electric Corporation ("Big Rivers") in Case No. 2013-00199, In The Matter Of: Application Of Meade County Rural
Electric Cooperative Corporation For Pass-Through Of Big Rivers Electric Corporation Wholesale Rate Adjustment.
Meade County submitted its pass-through application pursuant to the authority of KRS 278.455(2) and 807 KAR
5:007 in Case No. 2013-00231, In the Matter of> Application Of Meade County Rural Electric Cooperative
Corporation For Pass-Through Of Big Rivers Electric Corporation Wholesale Rate Adjustment. The Commission
approved Meade County’s pass-through of the Big Rivers’ rate increase for service rendered on and after February 1,
2014.



Commission on March 11, 2020. These rates are appropriately adjusted for known and measurable
changes, and Meade County proposes that its revised tariff schedules become effective as of July
5, 2020.

6. Further support for Meade County’s requested relief is throughout this Application
and its Exhibits, particularly in the testimony of the following witnesses:

a. Mr. Martin Littrel, Meade County’s President and Chief Executive Officer, who
offers testimony at Exhibit 7 describing, inter alia, the cooperative’s business and existing retail
electric distribution system, the events that preceded the filing of this case, and the cooperative’s
need to revise its existing rates to ensure it may continue to provide safe, reliable retail electric
service to its member-owners. Mr. Littrel may be contacted at mlittrel@mcrecc.com, (270) 422-
2911, ext. 3133, or Meade County’s office at 1351 Highway 79, Brandenburg, Kentucky 40108.

b. Ms. Anna Swanson, Meade County’s Vice President of Accounting and Finance,
who offers testimony at Exhibit 8 describing, inter alia, the cooperative’s financial health, its
expenses, and certain of its relevant practices and policies, as well as the necessity of the rate relief
requested in this proceeding. Ms. Swanson may be contacted at aswanson@mcrecc.com, (270)
422-2911, ext. 3131, or Meade County’s office at 1351 Highway 79, Brandenburg, Kentucky
40108.

c. Mr. John Wolfram, expert consultant with Catalyst Consulting LLC, who offers
testimony at Exhibit 9 describing, inter alia, Meade County’s rate classes, the calculation of Meade
County’s revenue requirement, the pro forma adjustments to the test period results, the results of
a just-completed Cost of Service Study (less than five years old) and its process, the proposed
allocation of the revenue increase to the rate classes, and the rate design, proposed rates, and

estimated billing impact by rate class. Mr. Wolfram may be contacted at



johnwolfram@catalystclle.com, 502-599-1739 (c), or Catalyst Consulting LLC, 3308 Haddon
Road, Louisville, Kentucky 40241.

7. Meade County has initiated this proceeding because its existing retail rates do not
provide sufficient revenue to ensure the financial strength of the cooperative. While it is always
Meade County’s goal to keep rates as low as possible for its members, the expense of providing
safe and reliable service must be recovered; additionally, prudent management and lender
requirements demand that healthy financial benchmarks be maintained. Based on the facts and
figures presented herein, Meade County respectfully requests that the rates and rate design it
proposes in this case be approved by the Commission at the earliest possible date.

8. Meade County’s request is limited to seeking adjustments in revenue requirements
and rate design and does not include any request for a certificate of public convenience and
necessity or changes in its tariff beyond those necessary to reflect changes in rates.

9. Meade County has submitted this Application electronically per the requirements
of 807 KAR 5:001, Section 8, and has contemporaneously electronically submitted a copy to the
Kentucky Attorney General, Office of Rate Intervention, at the following address:
rateintervention@ag.ky.gov.

10.  Members of Commission Staff may contact Meade County’s witnesses directly,
without counsel present, to seek clarification of certain factual information contained in the
Application or in responses to requests for information.

11.  Asevidenced by this Application and the Exhibits attached hereto, Meade County

has met all of the prerequisites for use of the Commission’s Streamlined Procedure Pilot Program



and requests that the Commission so find and administer all aspects of the case under the

procedures articulated in the Order of December 20, 2019, in Case No. 2018-00407.2

WHEREFORE, Meade County respectfully requests an Order from the Commission:

(1) Granting the procedural relief requested by entering an Order accepting Meade
County’s Application for filing under the Streamlined Procedure Pilot Program;

(2) Granting the substantive rate relief requested herein; and,

(3) Granting to Meade County any and all other relief to which it may appear entitled.

On this 29 day ofm, 2020.

Respectfully submitted,

<«

Ll
Honorable Thomas C Brite
Attorney At Law
Brite & Hopkins, PLLC
107 S. Main Street
P.O. Box 309
Hardinsburg, Kentucky 40143

Counsel for Meade County Rural Electric
Cooperative Corporation

2 Appended hereto is a Table of Contents detailing both the filing requirements applicable to this Application and
Meade County’s satisfaction thereof, consistent with relevant regulation and the Commission’s Order establishing the
Streamlined Procedure Pilot Program. :



VERIFICATION

COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY )

)
COUNTY OF MEADE )

Comes now Martin W. Littrel, President and Chief Executive Officer, and, after being duly
sworn, does hereby verify, swear and affirm that the averments set forth in the foregoing

Application are true and correct based upon my personal knowledge and belief, formed after
reasonable inquiry, as of this2J day of My_)gl , 2020.

MartiL W. Littrel

President and Chief Executive Officer
Meade County Rural Electric Cooperative Corporation

The foregoing Verification was verified, sworn to and affirmed before me, the NOTARY
PUBLIC by Martin W. Littrel, President and Chief Executive Officer of Meade County Rural
Electric Cooperative Corporation, on this 2¢ day of May 2020.

j (///l A WL‘(% \AL_

NOTARY PUBLIC

Commission No. ,,» L’ (7 g

My Commission Expires: ‘7’ 7. 7 Z-




Meade County Rural Electric Cooperative Corporation
Case No. 2020-00131

Table of Contents

Streamlined Rate Adjustment Procedure Pilot Program - Filing Requirements / Exhibit List

(Historical Test Peripd: Twelve Monihs Ending 12/31/2019)

Exhibit o : ok Sponsoring
No. Filing Requirement Description Witness(es)
1 807 KAR 5:001 § 16{1)b)(1) Statement of the reason the rate adjustment is required Martin Littrel

807 KAR 5:001 § 16(1){)(2)

Waived - Cerdificate of assumed name or statement that one is not necessary

2 807 KAR 5:001 § 16(1)b){3) Proposed tariff sheets Anna Swanson
3 807 KAR 5:001 §16(1){b)4) Proposed tariff sheets with proposed changes identified Anna Swanson
4 |807 KAR 5:001 § 16(1)(b)(5) Statement that compliant notice to customers has been given, with a copy of the notice Martin Littrel
7 : f i ; ; e ; : s s
5 228 IfézR 2L BISRIE BRn Notice to the Kentucky Public Service Commission of intent to adjust rates Martin Littrel
Complete description and quantified explanation for all proposed adjustments with
6 807 KAR 5:001 § 16(4)a) proper support for proposed changes in price or activity levels, if applicable, and other John Wolfram
factors that may affect the adjustment
7 |B07 KAR 5:001 § 16(4)(b) Written testimony of witnesses in support of Application (Mr. Littrel) Martin Littrel
8  |BO7 KAR 5:001 § 16(4)(b) Written testimony of witnesses in support of Application (Ms, Swanson) Anna Swanson
9 807 KAR 5:001 § 16{4)(b) Written testimony of witnesses in support of Application (Mr. Wolfram) John Wolfram
< 807 KAR 5:001 § 16(4)(c) Waived / Not applicable - Utility has gross annual revenues greater than 85 million
Statement estimating the effect that each new rate will have upon the revenues of the
10 |807 KAR 5:001 § 16(4)(d) utility, including the total amount of revenues resulting from the increase or decrease John Wolfram
and percentage increase or decrease
11 [807 KAR 5001 § 164)(c) Effect upon the average bill for each customer classification to which the proposed rate John Wolftam
change will apply
s 807 KAR 5:001 § 16(4)(F) Not applicable - Utility is not an incumbent local exchange company
! Detailed analysis of customers' bills whereby revenues from the present and proposed
12 [BoTicAl SO0l FIeEIE rates can be readily determined for each customer class )
13 |807 KAR 5:001 § 16(4)(h) Summary of the utility's determination of its revenue requirements John Wolfram
14 [807 KAR 5:001 § 16(4)(i) Reconciliation of the rate base and capital used to determine its revenué requirements John Wolfram
) 807 KAR 5:001 § 1641(j) Waived - Current chart of accounts if morve detailed than the Uniform System of
lAccounts
Waived - Independent auditor's anpual opinion report, with written communication
- 807 KAR 5:001 § 16¢4)(k) from the independent auditor 1o the utility, if applicable, which indicates the exisience
af a material weakness in the utility's intemal controls
= 307 KAR 5:001 § 16(4)(1) Waived - Most recent Federal Energy Regulatory Commission audit veport
KAR 5- Waived - Most recent FERC Financial Report FERC Form No. I, FERC' Financial
- L 001 LG 0m) Report FERC Form No. 2, ov Public Service Commission Form T (telephone)
807 KAR 5:001 § 16(4)(n) Waived .[f d.eprecmtron schedule on file with the Commission is the most vecent version
- see Bxhibit 29
Waived - List of all commercially available or in-hose developed computer saftware,
- |807 KAR 5:001 §16(4)(0) [programs, and moedels used in the development of the schedules and work papers
associated with the filing of the utility's application
= 807 KAR 5:001 § 16(4)(p) Waived / Not applicable - Ulility has made no stock or bond efferings
Watved - Annual veport to shareholders or members and statistical supplements
. 7KAR 5:
5 S:0AL ey covering the tweo (2) most recent vears from the utility's application filing date
- 807 KAR 5:001 § 16(4)(r) Wearved - Monthly m.anagenafl regortsprowdmgﬁnancm] results of operations for the
twelve (12) months in the test period
Waived - Utility’s annual report on Form 10-K (most recent two (2) years), any Form
- 807 KAR 5:001 § 16(4)() S-K issued during the past two (2) vears, and any Form 10-Q issued during the past six
(6) guarters updated as information becomes available
Affiliate charges, allocations, and payments with description, explanation, and
demonstration of reasonableness (including a detailed description of the method and
15 |807 KAR 5:001 § 16(43(0) amounts allocated or charged to the utility by the affiliate, an explanation of how the P —

allocator for the test period was determined and all facts relied upon, including other
regulatory approval, to demonstrate that each amount charged. allocated or paid during

the test period was reasonable).
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Meade County Rural Electric Cooperative Corporation
Case No. 2020-00131

Table of Contents

Streamlined Rate Adjustment Procedure Pilot Program - Filing Requirements / Exhibit List

(Historical Test Peripd: Twelve Mouths Ending 12/31/2019)

Exhibit L : g Sponsoring
Na. Filing Requirement Description Witness(es)
- Cost of service study based on a methodology generally accepted within the industry
15 |07 BR300 TR and based on current and reliable data from a single time period (less than 5 years old) Tolmy Wik
2 807 KAR 5:001 § 16(4)) Waived / Not applicable - Utility is not a local exchange carvier
17 |307 KAR 5:001 § 16(5)a) Dc.talled income statement and balance sheet reflecting the impact of all proposed John Wolftam
adjustments
- i Waived - Most recent capital construction budget containing at least the period of litme
- SRTISAR L R as proposed for any pro forma adjistment for plant additions
= 807 KAR 5:001 § 16(5)(c) Waived - Detail regarding pro forma adinstments reflecting plant additions
y 807 KAR 5:001 § 16(5)(c) Wa.:fved - Operating budget for each month of the period encompassing the pro forma
adjustments
Number of customers to be added to the test period end level of customers and the
18 |807 KAR 5:001 § 16(5)(e) related revenue requirements impact for all pro forma adjustments with complete details John Wolfram
and supporting work papers
19 Case No. 2008-00408 Consideration of cost-cffective energy efficiency resources and impact of such resources Martin Tittrel
Tuly 24, 2012 Order on test year
20 Case No. 2018-00407 Narrative statement discussing any changes that have occurred for the Distribution Mt Cittrel
December 11, 2018 Order Cooperative since the effective date of its last general base rate adjustment 3
LS s 20180 07 The estimated dates for drawdowns of unadvanced loan funds at test-year-end and the
21 |December 20, 2019 Order, S AT ey Anna Swanson
Appendix A, Item D 4.a. P
Case No. 2018-00407
22  |December 20, 2019 Order. A general statement identifying any electric property or plant held for future use Anna Swanson
Appendix A, Item D 4.b.
Case No. 2018-00407 : . o
33 |December 20, 2019 Order, I’i‘l}lze;t;:all;:;(jleglogeoi :Coi;rtrilzﬁzrzfe?eprecnatmn expense (test-year-end plant account-balance John Wolfram
Appendix A, Item D d.ac P ¥ dep
Case No. 2018-00407 Any changes that occurred during the test year to the Distribution Cooperative's written
24 |December 20, 2019 Order, policies on the compensation of its attomeys, auditors, and all other professional service Anna Swanson
Appendix A, Item D.4.d. providers, indicating the effective date and reason for these changes
A schedule of the Distribution Cooperative's standard directors' fees, per diems and
Case No. 2018-00407 other compensation in effect during the test year, including a description of the any A S
25 |December 20, 2019 Order, charges that occurred during the test vear to the Distribution Cooperatives' written John Wolfram
Appendix A, Item D.4.e. polices specifying the compensation of directors, indicating the effective date and
reason for any change
A schedule reflecting the salaries and other compensation of each executive officer for
the test year and two preceding calendar years. Include the percentage of annual
Case No. 2018-00407 increase and the effective date of each increase, the job title, duty and responsibility of
26 |December 20, 2019 Order, each officer, the number of employees who report to each executive officer, and to Anna Swanson
Appendix A, Item D.4.f. whom each executive officer reports. Also, for employees elected to executive officer
status during the test year, provide the salaries for the test year for those persons whom
they replaced
An analysis of Account No. 930, Miscellaneous General Expenses, for the test vear.
Include a complete breakdown of this account by the following categories: industry
oty | B e b
27 [December 20, 2019 Order, G > : i

Appendix A, tem D 4.2,

subscriptions, and miscellaneous. Include all detailed supporting work papers. Ata
minimum, the work papers should show the date, vendor, reference (e.g.. voucher
number), dollar amount, and a brief description of each expenditure. Detailed analysis is
not required for amounts of less than $100

John Wolfram

2of 3



Meade County Rural Electric Cooperative Corporation
Case No. 2020-00131

Table of Contents

Streamlined Rate Adjustment Procedure Pilot Program - Filing Requirements / Exhibit List

(Historical Test Peripd: Twelve Months Ending 12/31/2019)

Exhibit
No.

Filing Requirement

Description

Sponsoring
Witness(es)

Case No. 2018-00407

An analysis of Account No. 426, Other Income Deductions, for the test period. Include a
complete breakdown of this account by the following categories: donations, civie
activities, political activities, and other. Include detailed supporting work papers. At a

Anna Swanson &

28 ieceel:cti)if):{r /i,oitifrll %(ir}c]ier, minimum, the work papers should show the date, vendor, reference (e.g., voucher John Wolfram
PP T number), dollar amount, and brief description of each expenditure. Detailed analysis is
not required for amounts of less than $250
A statement explaining whether the depreciation rates reflected in the filing are identical
Case No. 2018-00407 L . . . . .
to those most recently approved by the Commission. If identical, identify the case in Anna Swanson &
29 |December 20, 2019 Order, . . o
. . which they were approved. If not, provide the depreciation study that supports the rates John Wolfram
Appendix A, Item D 4.i. . h
reflected in the filing
Case No. 2018-00407 A copy of all exhibits and schedules that were prepared for the rate application in Excel
30 |December 20, 2019 Order, spreadsheet format with all formulas intact and unprotected and with all columns and John Wolfram
Appendix A, Item D.4.]. rows accessible
Case No. 2018-00407 The distribution cooperative's TIER, OTIER, and debt service coverage ratio, as
31 |December 20, 2019 Order, calculated by the RUS, for the test vear and the five most recent calendar vears, Anna Swanson
Appendix A, Item D.4.k. including the data used to calculate each ratio
A trial balance as of the last day of the test year showing account number, subaccount
Case No. 2018-00407 numbm.", a.(:(.:ount t1.tle, sybaccount title, and amount. The trial balanf:e s.hall. include all
asset, liability, capital, income, and expense accounts used by the distribution
32 |December 20, 2019 Order, . b .. Anna Swanson
Appendix A, Item DAl cooperative. All income statements accounts should show activity for 12 months. The
PP o application should show the balance in each control account and all underlying
subaccounts per the company books
Case No. 2018-00407 A schedule comparing balances for each balance sheet account or subaccount included
33  |December 20, 2019 Order, in the Distribution Cooperative's chart of accounts for each month of the test year to the Anna Swanson
Appendix A, Item D.4.m. same month of the 12-month period immediately preceding the test year
A schedule comparing each income statement account or subaccount included in the
Case No. 2018-00407 Distribution Cooperative's chart of accounts for each month of the of the test year to the
34 |December 20, 2019 Order, same month of the 12-month period immediately preceding the test year. The amounts Anna Swanson
Appendix A, Item D.4.n. should reflect the income or expense activity of each month, rather than the cumulative
balances at the end of the particular month
Case No. 2018-00407 A schedule showing employee health, dental, vision, and life insurance premium
35 |December 20, 2019 Order, contributions by coverage type, including the cost split of each identified premium Anna Swanson
Appendix A, Item D.4.0. between the employee and the Distribution Cooperative
Case No. 2018-00407 A schedule showing anticipated and incurred rate case expenses, with supporting
36 |December 20, 2019 Order, documentation. This information should be updated during the proceedin, Anna Swarson
Appendix A, Item D.4.p. ) P gfhep 5
Case No. 2018-00407 A Distribution Cooperative that has not had a general adjustment in rates within the past
37 |December 20, 2019 Order, five years should provide a detailed explanation as to why it did not seek a rate increase Martin Littrel

Appendix A, Item D.3

during that period of time.
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Meade County Rural Electric Cooperative Corporation
Case No. 2020-00131
Streamlined Rate Adjustment Procedure Pilot Program
Filing Requirements / Exhibit List

Exhibit 1

807 KAR 5:001 Sec. 16(1)(b)(1)
Sponsoring Witness: Martin Littrel

Description of Iiling Requirement:

A statement of the reason the adjustment is required.

Response:

Please see the Direct Testimony of Mr. Martin Littrel, Meade County’s President and

Chief Executive Officer, included at Exhibit 7.

Case No. 2020-00131
Application - Exhibit 1
No Attachment



Meade County Rural Electric Cooperative Corporation
Case No. 2020-00131
Streamlined Rate Adjustment Procedure Pilot Program
Filing Requirements / Exhibit List

Exhibit 2

807 KAR 5:001 Sec. 16(1)(b)(3)
Sponsoring Witness: Anna Swanson

Description of Filing Requirement:

New or revised tariff sheets, if applicable in a format that complies with 807 KAR 5:011

with an effective date not less than thirty (30) days from the date the application is filed.

Response:

Please see attached.

Case No. 2020-00131
Application - Exhibit 2
Includes Attachment (12 pages)



For Entire Territory Served

Community, Town, or City

Meade County Rural Electric First Revised SI;IE; ﬁg +
Cooperative Corporation _ —
Cancelling
Oricinal PSC No. 44
LS Sheet No. 1
Schedule 1 CLASSIFICATION OF SERVICE
RATE PER
Residential, Farm and Non-Farm, Schools & Churches UNIT
Applicable:
Entire Territory Served.
Availability of Service:
Available to customers of the Cooperative located on its lines for service including lighting,
incidental appliances, refrigeration, cooking, home heating and power for meoters up to and
including seven and one-half horsepower (7 1/2 H.P.}; All subject to the rules and regulations of
the Cooperative covering this service.
Character of Service:
Single phase, 60 hertz, at Seller’s standard voltages.
Rates: Customer charge — No KWH usage
Daily $0.703 (1)
Energy charge per KWH 0.097665

State, Federal and local tax will be added to above rate where applicable.

Minimum Charge:
In no case shall the minimum bill be less than $0.703 per day

Adjustment Clauses:
The bill amount computed at the charges specified above shall be increased or decreased

in accordance with the following:

Fuel Adjustment Schedule 18
Envircnment Surcharge Schedule 19
Unwind Surcredit Adjustment Schedule 20
Rebate Adjustment Schedule 21

Member Rate Stability Mechanism Schedule 22
Rural Economic Reserve Clause  Schedule 23

Terms of Payment:
The above rates are net, the gross rates being ten percent (10%) higher. In the event the
current monthly bill is not paid within ten {(10) days from the due date, the gross rates shall

apply.

DATE OF ISSUE June 5, 2020

DATE EFFECTIVE July 5, 2020

ISSUED BY

TITLE President/CEO

BY AUTHORITY OF ORDER OF THE PUBLIC SERVICE
COMMISSION IN CASE NO. 2020-00131 DATED



For Entire Territory Served

Community, Town, or City

Meade County Rural Electric First Revised Sﬁi; ﬁg
Cooperative Corporation _ '
Cancelling
Original PSCNo.
isinal Sheet No.
Schedule 1 - continued CLASSIFICATION OF SERVICE
RATE PER
UNIT

Residential, Farm and Non-Farm, Schools & Churches

Multiple Units:
Service supplied under rate Schedule 1 is based on service to a single unit at one point of

delivery through a single meter. Where the premises consist of two or more units, Schedule
1 may be applied only if separate circuits are provided without cost to the distributor. If it is
not practical to provide for separate metering of each unit, the entire premises will be served
under the appropriate commercial rate.

Commercial Use of Portions of Dwellings:

The residential rate is not applicable to the space in the dwelling which is regularly used for
commercial purposes. In such cases, if a separate circuit is provided at no cost to the Distributor.
For the portion of the dwelling so used, the residential rate will be applied to the balance of the
Power requirements and the commercial rate will be applied to the portion of the dwelling used
For commercial purposes. |f a separate circuit is not provided, the entire power requirements of
The premises must be billed under the commercial rate. If the premises are used primarily as a
private dwelling and space in the dwelling occasionally used for commercial purposes,
the residential rate should be applied to the entire power requirements.

Domestic Power Use:

A farm on which is located a single dwelling and its appurtenances including barns
and out-buildings, and which processes only its own products, shall be
considered a domestic farm and shall be entitled to the residential rate for all of its power
requirements including motors up to and including rated capacity of seven and one-half horse-
power (7 1/2 H. P.). Motors of capacities larger than seven and one-half horsepower (71/2 H.P.)
shall not be installed except by written permission of the Cocperative. Service to dwellings other
than the main buildings must be separately metered and billed under the residential rate.
This interpretation is not applicable to commercial dairies as defined below.

DATE OF ISSUE June 5, 2020

DATE EFFECTIVE July 5, 2020

ISSUED BY

TITLE President/CEO

BY AUTHORITY OF ORDER OF THE PUBLIC SERVICE
COMMISSION IN CASE NO. 2020-00131 DATED

1

2



For Entire Territory Served

Community, Town, or City

Meade County Rural Electric First Revised SI;IE; ﬁg
Cooperative Corporation _ '
Cancelling
Original PSC No. _
isinal Sheet No.
Schedule 1 - continued
CLASSIFICATION OF SERVICE
RATE PER
UNIT

Residential, Farm and Non-Farm, Schools & Churches

Commercial Farm Use:

1. Farm use shall be metered and billed under the commercial lighting and power rate if
other dwellings beside the main dwelling are not separately metered and are served through the
same peint of delivery, or if products of other farms are processed for sale. The main dwelling
and other living quarters may be metered and billed under the residential rate if a
separate circuit is provided for all of the other farm uses in cases where products of other farms
are processed for sale.

2. If a farm customer's barn, pump house or other out-buildings are located at such
distances from his residence as to make it impractical to supply service thareto through his
residential meter, the separate meter required to measure service to such remotely located
buildings will be considered a separate service contract and billed as a separate customer.

3. All motors rated above one horsepower {1 H.P.) must be 240 volt motors. All motor
installations, fluorescent and cther gaseous lighting installations must conform with the
Cooperative's power factor correction rule applicable thereto.

4. Three-phase service will not be made available under Rate Schedule 1. Consumers
requiring three-phase service shall be billed on the Cooperative's applicable power rate subject
to the rules and regulations covering such service.

DATE OF ISSUE June 5, 2020

DATE EFFECTIVE July 5, 2020

ISSUED BY

TITLE President/CEO

BY AUTHORITY OF ORDER OF THE PUBLIC SERVICE
COMMISSION IN CASE NO. 2020-00131 DATED

1

_3

31~
_3



For Entire Territory Served

Community, Town, or City

Meade County Rural Electric First Revised goeNe 1
Cooperative Corporation | C—
Cancelling
Oricinal PSC No. 32
Sheet No. 4
Schedule 1 - continued CLASSIFICATION OF SERVICE
RATE PER
UNIT

Residential, Farm and Non-Farm, Schools & CGhurches

Addendum — Underground Service
The Cooperative will install underground distribution lines to an applicant under the following
conditions:

1. Applicant shall be required to pay to the Cooperative an amount equal to an “estimated average
cost differential” if any, between the average or representative cost of underground distribution
service and of equivalent overhead distribution service within the utility service areas.

2. The Cocperative will construct underground distribution facilities to the service adequate to
render single phase 120/240 volt service.

3. Three-phase primary mains or feeders required for a service to supply local distribution or to
serve individual three-phase loads may be overhead unless underground is required by
governmental authorities or chosen by applicant, in either of which case the differential cost of
underground shall be borne by the applicant. See Exhibit A.

4. Applicant shall grant a right-of-way satisfactory to the Cooperative for the installation, operation
and maintenance of its underground facilities.

5. Service line to house shall be installed and ready for inspecticn at the same time as the
residence. Trench is to be left open until inspection has been made.

6. The applicant shall have the choice of performing all necessary trenching and backfilling in
accordance with the Cooperative’s specifications or shall pay for such service using the following
rates.

Secondary Ditch Primary Ditch
Opening and closing ditch $4.80 per foot $6.60 per foot

An additional moving fee of $380.00 shall be charged.

DATE OF ISSUE June 5, 2020

DATE EFFECTIVE July 5, 2020

ISSUED BY

TITLE President/CEO

BY AUTHORITY OF ORDER OF THE PUBLIC SERVICE
COMMISSION IN CASE NO. 2020-00131 DATED



For Entire Territory Served

Community, Town, or City

Meade County Rural Electric First Revised oo L
Cooperative Corporation | C—
Cancelling
Oricinal PSC No. 32
Sheet No. 5
Schedule 1 - continued CLASSIFICATION OF SERVICE
RATE PER
UNIT

Residential, Farm and Non-Farm, Schools & Churches

7. The estimated cost differential per foot of conductor is for normal soil conditions and does not
include rock removal or road crossing costs. The applicant shall have the choice of performing the
necessary rock removal and road crossing or shall pay for such services using the following rates:

Rock Removal Road Crossing
Three phase primary $173.00 per foot $48.00 per foot
Single phase primary $173.00 per foot $46.50 per foot
Service or secondary $108.00 per foot $486.50 per foot

An additional moving fee of $360.00 shall be charged.

8. The estimated cost differential per foot of conductor is filed herewith as Exhibit “A”.

DATE OF ISSUE June 5, 2020

DATE EFFECTIVE July 5, 2020

ISSUED BY

TITLE President/CEO

BY AUTHORITY OF ORDER OF THE PUBLIC SERVICE
COMMISSION IN CASE NO. 2020-00131 DATED



For Entire Territory Served

Community, Town, or City

Meade County Rural Electric First Revised oo L
Cooperative Corporation | C—
Cancelling
Oricinal PSC No. 32
Sheet No. 6
Schedule 1 - continued CLASSIFICATION OF SERVICE
RATE PER
UNIT

Residential, Farm and Non-Farm, Schools & Churches

EXHIBIT A
AVERAGE UNDERGROUND COST DIFFERENTIAL

Three Phase Single Phase

Average cost per foot of underground service $23.53 $14.71
Average cost per foot of overhead service $7.51 $4.30
Average cost differential per foct of service $16.02 $10.41

Note: Above estimated cost for underground does not include the cost of trenching, backfilling, rock
removal or road crossing costs.

DATE OF ISSUE June 5, 2020

DATE EFFECTIVE July 5, 2020

ISSUED BY

TITLE President/CEO

BY AUTHORITY OF ORDER OF THE PUBLIC SERVICE
COMMISSION IN CASE NO. 2020-00131 DATED



For Entire Territory Served

Community, Town, or City

Meade County Rural Electric First Revised se T
. : Sheet No. 7
Cooperative Corporation
Cancelling
Original PSCNo. _ 43
LOEImnd Sheet No. 7

PREPAY SERVICE

STANDARD RIDER:

Meade County Rural Electric Cooperative Corporation’s Prepay Service (“Prepay™) is an optional rider to
Rate Schedule 1-Residential, Farm & Non Farm, Schools and Churches.

AVAILABILITY:

All Rate Schedule 1 — Residential, Farm & Non Farm, Schools and Churches, excluding accounts on
Levelized/Fixed Budget, Automatic Bank Draft, Net Metering, and accounts greater than 200 Amp Service
within the territory served by Meade County.

DAILY RATE:

Consumer Charge no KkWh usage $ 0.703 (D
Energy Charge per kWh: $0.097665
Prepay Service Fee: ) 0.32

TERMS & CONDITIONS:

Members who qualify as defined above in *Availability™ may choose to voluntarily enroll their electric
account(s) in the Prepay service and are subject to the following:

1. Each member electing Prepay will be subject to all other applicable rules and regulations which apply
to members using the residential tariff, without the Prepay rider.

2. Members shall have internet access or the ability to receive electronic communications, including
texting services to participate in the voluntary Prepay service.

3. Any member choosing to enroll in Prepay shall sign a Prepay Service Agreement (*Agreement”).
The Agreement shall remain in effect until the member notifies Meade County RECC, in writing, to
cancel the Agreement.

4. Upon written cancellation of the Agreement, the member shall be subject to the conditions of the
applicable tariff, without the Prepay rider. In accordance with Meade County’s current Rules

DATE OF ISSUE June 5, 2020

DATE EFFECTIVE July 5. 2020

ISSUED BY

TITLE President/CEQ

BY AUTHORITY OF ORDER OF THE PUBLIC SERVICE
COMMISSION IN CASE NO. 2020-00131 DATED



For Entire Territory Served

Community, Town, or City

Meade County Rural Electric First Revised S ——
Cooperative Corporation h——
Cancelling
Original Pl <
TR Sheet No. 8
PREPAY SERVICE
(CONTINUED)

and Regulations, this may require a security deposit to be paid by the member at the time of
cancellation of the Prepay service.

wh

The Consumer Charge and Energy Charge will be the same as Meade County’s applicable residential
tariff. The Energy Charge per kWh will be calculated and deducted from the member’s account on a
daily basis. The Consumer Charge and Prepay Service Fee will also be deducted from the member’s
account on a daily basis.

6. The Fuel Cost Adjustment and Environmental Surcharge will be charged or credited to the account
daily. The Fuel Adjustment and Environmental Surcharge will be the rates in effect for the time of
update.

7. The Prepay account will not be subject to deposits. late fees. disconnect fees, and reconnect fees.

8. At the time Prepay is activated for an account, the initial purchase is recommended to be a minimum
of $100.00. Purchases beyond the point of activation will be at an increment of the member’s
choosing, with a minimum purchase being $25.00. Members may apply funds to their prepay
account(s) by most methods as post pay and include the following: credit card, debit card, check and
cash. Payment can be made via the website, phone and in person at one of Meade County’s offices.
Payment methods are listed on Meade County’s website, www.mcrecc.com.

9. When an existing member selects to participate in Prepay and has a security deposit on file, the
deposit and any accumulated interest will not be refunded. The deposit will be converted into a credit
on the Prepay account going forward. No crediting of the deposit to the Prepay account shall occur if
the deposit is needed to cover a pre-existing indebtedness by the member or the member has another
account(s) which does not have a satisfactory credit history. the remaining credit will be transferred
as a deposit to the unsecured account(s).

10. If a member who has not participated in Prepay is disconnected for non-payment, the member may
request to be reconnected and enrolled in Prepay. If the member is unable to pay the account balance
in full for the disconnected account, a payment plan whereby future purchases for Prepay will be split
70/30 until the old debt is retired will be established. Seventy percent (70%) of the payments will be
applied to new purchases and thirty percent (30%) will be applied towards retirement of the previous
balance minus any applicable deposit.

DATE OF ISSUE June 5. 2020

DATE EFFECTIVE July 5, 2020

ISSUED BY

TITLE President/CEQ

BY AUTHORITY OF ORDER OF THE PUBLIC SERVICE
COMMISSION IN CASE NO. 2020-00131 DATED
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PREPAY SERVICE (CONTINUED)

11. A prior member, who previously received service from Meade County and discontinued service
without paying his/her final bill, (i.e. an uncollectible account/bad debt) will be required to pay the
past due amount prior to establishing prepay service. If the member is unable to pay the account
balance in full, a payment plan whereby future purchases for Prepay will be split 70/30 until the old
debt is retired will be established. Seventy percent (70%) of the payments will be applied to new
purchases and thirty percent (30%) will be applied towards retirement of the previous balance.

12. Once an account is enrolled in Prepay. the account will no longer be eligible for additional payment
arrangements.

13. Financial assistance from community action or other agencies received for a Prepay account will be
credited to the balance of the Prepay account upon receipt of a voucher or other supporting official
documents of commitment from the agency providing assistance.

14. When a Prepay account reaches a balance of $25.00, an automated message(s) will be processed and
sent to the member and no written notice will be sent by mail.

15. If a payment on a Prepay account is returned for any reason. the account is subject to the service fee
as provided in Meade County’s Rules and Regulations.

16. Members presenting a Winder Hardship Reconnect, Certificate of Need or Medical Certificate as
provided in 807 KAR 5:006, Sections 14, 15, and 16 will be removed from Prepay and the account
will return to the status of a post-pay account.

17. A monthly paper bill will not be mailed to a member who elects to participate in Prepay. The
member may view their Prepay account status on Meade County’s website. Based on the Prepay
notification system, the account should not be eligible for past-due status, therefore; a delinquent
notice will not be processed or mailed.

18. A Prepay account will be disconnected if the balance of the account becomes negative. The account
will be disconnected regardless of weather/temperature as the member is responsible for ensuring that
the Prepay account is adequately funded. Meade County discourages participation in the Prepay
program if the member cannot ensure proper funding.

DATE OF ISSUE June 3, 2020

DATE EFFECTIVE July 5, 2020

ISSUED BY

TITLE President/CEQ

BY AUTHORITY OF ORDER OF THE PUBLIC SERVICE
COMMISSION IN CASE NO. 2020-00131 DATED
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PREPAY SERVICE (CONTINUED)

19. If a Prepay account is disconnected due to lack of funds or any other reason, Meade County shall be
held harmless for any damages due to loss of energy service. Likewise. if the account is disconnected
and the member applied funds to the Prepay account thus causing the account to be reconnected, the
member accepts full responsibility for any damages to the location caused by the account being
reconnected and holds the Cooperative harmless from any damages arising from such a reconnection.

20. Prepay accounts will be billed daily with a month-end billing being processed to finalize any
applicable miscellaneous fees such as billing contracts, WinterCare, etc.

21. If a request is made to disconnect the service at a Prepay account, any remaining balance will be
transferred to other active accounts, if applicable, or refunded in form of check.

22. Should damage occur to the equipment as a result of malice or neglect by the member, the member
shall be billed for the replacement cost of the equipment.

23. Members may check the status of a Prepay account by utilizing Meade County’s website or by calling
the office at any time.

24. The member shall pay any fees as applicable by the Cooperative bylaws and the Cooperative

Rules and Regulations as approved by the Kentucky Public Service Commission and as may
be required for the member to participate in the Prepay electric service program.

DATE OF ISSUE June 5, 2020

DATE EFFECTIVE July 5, 2020

ISSUED BY

TITLE President/ CEO

BY AUTHORITY OF ORDER OF THE PUBLIC SERVICE
COMMISSION IN CASE NO. 2020-00131 DATED



Exhibit B
Page 1 of 2
MEADE COUNTY RURAL ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE CORPORATION
AGREEMENT FOR PREPAY SERVICE

Member Name Home Phone

Account No. Cell Phone

Service Address Cell Carrier
E-mail

The undersigned (hereinafter called the “member™) hereby applies for participation in the voluntary Prepay service offered to
members of Meade County Rural Electric Cooperative Corporation. (hereinafter called the “Cooperative™), and agrees to the
following terms and conditions:

I

2

The member shall purchase electric energy from the Cooperative in accordance with the present and any future rate
schedule of the Cooperative on a Prepay basis for the above referenced account.

The member understands that the terms and conditions set forth in the member’s Application for Membership continue
to apply in addition to the terms and conditions of this Agreement for Prepay Service, subject, however, to any changes
set forth in this agreement.

The member shall pay any fees as applicable by the Cooperative bylaws and the Cooperative Rules and Regulations
as approved by the Kentucky Public Service Commission and as may be required for the member to participate in the
Prepay electric service program.

Any deposit on the above referenced account will be applied to the final billing for the post-pay account before the
account changes to Prepay service. Any credit remaining on the account will be applied to the Prepay account.
However, if the member has another account(s) which does not have a satisfactory credit history, the remaining credit
will be transferred as a deposit to the unsecured account(s). The deposit will only be refunded by applying it to the
member’s account(s) as described above.

Those members participating in Prepay service will not be mailed a monthly paper bill for electric usage or other
applicable fees or charges. Account information may be obtained from the web portal or by contacting the office.

The member shall pay a daily program fee and a daily consumer customer charge. This amount will be in addition to
the charges included for the fuel cost adjustment and environmental surcharge rates which will be charged or credited
to the account based upon the effective rates. The effective rates of the fuel adjustment and environmental surcharge
will be the rates in effect when kWh'’s are used.

During any interruption, outage and/or disconnections, the customer charge, Prepay fee and any security light charges
will continue to accrue.

If a member changes any of the contact information (i.e. e-mail address, phone number, etc.) provided on this
agreement, it is the responsibility of the member to notify the Cooperative of any such changes immediately. It is the
member’s responsibility to manage their own communication devices.

When the amount of funds remaining on a Prepay account reaches the established threshold of $25.00, an automated
message will be sent to the member rather than a traditional, written notice sent by U.S. Mail. The Cooperative shall
not be responsible for any failure of the member to receive the automated message for any reason(s).

The member shall be responsible for regularly monitoring the balance on the Prepay account and understands that the
electric service will be subject to disconnection without any written, verbal or other method of notification from the
Cooperative to the member once the balance of the account reaches a negative balance. If the member cannot ensure
proper funding, the Cooperative recommends the member not utilize the Prepay service.

. Budget billing, automatic draft, net metering, and three-phase accounts are not eligible for Prepay service.

Should the member have a payment returned for any reason, the returned payment will be charged to the Prepay
account. The member’s account shall also be charged a return payment fee as referenced in the Cooperative’s PSC
approved Rules and Regulations in addition to the returned payment amount. If there are not sufficient funds to cover
the returned item and fee, the account will be disconnected immediately.

. If a Prepay account is disconnected due to lack of funds or any other reason. the Cooperative shall be held harmless

for any damages due to loss of energy service. Likewise, if the account is disconnected and the member applied funds
to the Prepay account thus causing the account to be reconnected, the member accepts full responsibility for any




14.

18.

24,

25.

Exhibit B

Page | of 2

damages to the location caused by the account being reconnected and holds the Cooperative harmless from any
damages arising from such a reconnection.

By signing this agreement, the member affirms there are no residents in the home that currently have medical
conditions that will be impacted by loss of service. Should this status change, the member shall contact the
Cooperative in writing, at which time the account will be removed from Prepay service. It is the responsibility of the
member to confirm the Cooperative is in receipt of the written request for removal from Prepay service.

. A Prepay account will be disconnected if the balance of the account becomes negative. The account will be

disconnected regardless of weather or temperature as the member is responsible for ensuring that the Prepay account
is adequately funded.

. Financial assistance from community action or other agencies received for a Prepay account will be credited to the

balance of the Prepay account upon receipt of a voucher or other supporting official documents of commitment from
the agency providing assistance.

If a member on a Prepay account presents a Certificate of Need, a Medical Certificate or qualifies for a Winter
Hardship Reconnect, the member shall be required to transfer to a post-pay service account,

The member authorizes the Cooperative to transfer the unpaid balance of $ from the member’s
post-pay account to the Prepay service account. The member also authorizes the kWh used since the last bill date
until the meter is changed to Prepay service to be calculated and transferred to the Prepay account. The member
further agrees that thirty percent (30%) of any future purchases for funding the Prepay account shall be applied to the
balance until said balance is paid in full. Any fees/penalties (returned payment, meter tampering, etc.) shall be paid
before any purchases for funding is applied to the member’s Prepay account.

. For a prior member who previously received service from the Cooperative and discontinued service without paying

his/her final bill, (i.e. an uncollectable account/bad debt), the member agrees that if the uncollectable account/bad
debt is not paid in full upon enrolling in the Prepay Program, thirty (30%) of any payments made on this account in
the future shall be applied to the balance until said uncollectable account/bad debt is paid in full. The member
authorizes the Cooperative to transfer the uncollectable account/bad debt balance of $ to the Prepay
Account.

. A Prepay account shall not be eligible for future payment plan arrangements.
. If a member wishes to disconnect service, the member shall be refunded any balance on the Prepay account. Any

refund will be processed in the same manner as a post-pay account refund.

. The member, by signing this agreement, confirms the ability to receive electronic communications which is required

to be eligible for the Prepay service.

. The Prepay agreement shall be in effect for (1) year. After one year, the member may elect to opt out of the Prepay

program by submitting a request for cancelation to the Cooperative in writing. If Prepay service is ended. the member
must meet the requirements of a post-pay account for continued service.

Members may apply funds to a Prepay account by most payment methods available for post-pay service and provided
on the Cooperative’s website at: www.mcrecc.com

The undersigned agrees that Cooperative personnel has comprehensively explained this Prepay program and have
fully informed the member of all aspects of the program.

Member Signature: SSN: Date:

Member Signature: S8N: Date:

CSR Signature: Date:

Preferred Method of notification is (please check one): [] E-Mail [ Text

OFFICE USE ONLY

SO Number Date Installed
Customer NO. Initials
| Comments




Meade County Rural Electric Cooperative Corporation
Case No. 2020-00131
Streamlined Rate Adjustment Procedure Pilot Program
Filing Requirements / Exhibit List

Exhibit 3

807 KAR 5:001 Sec. 16(1)(b)(4)
Sponsoring Witness: Anna Swanson

Description of Iiling Requirement:

New or revised tariff sheets, if applicable, identified in compliance with 807 KAR 5:011,
shown either by providing: (a) the present and proposed tariffs in comparative form on
the same sheet side by side or on facing sheets side by side; or (b) a copy of the present

tariff indicating proposed additions by italicized inserts or underscoring and striking
over proposed deletions.

Response:

Please see attached.

Case No. 2020-00131
Application - Exhibit 3
Includes Attachment (12 pages)



FOR  Entire Territory served

Community, Town or City

PS.C.No. 144
First Sheet No. |
Revised
(Revised)
MEADE COUNTY RURAL ELECTRIC
COOPERATIVE CORPORATION Canceling  P.SC.No. 4443
Original  (Original) SheetNo. 1
Schedule 1 CLASSIFICATION OF SERVICE
RATE PER
Residential, Farm and Non-Farm, Schools & Churches UNIT
Applicable:
Entire Territory Served.
Availability of Service:
Available to customers of the Cooperative located on its lines for service including lighting,
incidental appliances, refrigeration, cooking, home heating and power for motors up to and
including seven and one-half horsepower (7 1/2 H.P.); All subject to the rules and regulations of
the Cooperative covering this service.
Character of Service:
Single phase, 60 hertz, at Seller’s standard voltages.
Rates: Customer charge — No KWH usage
; | s 5670
Raly $0.703 (D
Energy charge per KWH - 0.097665

State, Federal and local tax will be added to above rate where applicable.

Minimum Charge:
In no case shall the minimum bill be less than $0.703 572 per day

Adjustment Clauses:

The bill amount computed at the charges specified above shall be increased or decreased

in accordance with the following:

Fuel Adjustment Schedule 18
Environment Surcharge Schedule 19
Unwind Surcredit Adjustment Schedule 20
Rebate Adjustment Schedule 21

Member Rate Stability Mechanism Schedule 22
Rural Economic Reserve Clause  Schedule 23

Terms of Payment:
The above rates are net, the gross rates being ten percent (10%) higher. In the event the

current monthly bill is not paid within ten (10) days from the due date, the gross rates shall
apply.

DATE OF ISSUE WMay-14-2044 June 5. 2020

Month/Date/Year
DATE EFFECTIVE ___February3-2014 July 5, 2020
Month/Date/Year
ISSUED BY.
(Signature of Officer)
TITLE President / CEQ

BY AUTHORITY OF ORDER OF THE PUBLIC SERVICE
COMMISSION IN CASE NO. _ 2043-08231 2020-00131  DATED___-b4/28044




FOR  Entire Territory served

Community, Town or City

P.S.C.No. 131
Eirst (Original) SheetNo. 2
Revised
(Revised)
MEADE COUNTY RURAL ELECTRIC
COOPERATIVE CORPORATION Canceling  P.S.C.No. 3130
Original  (Original) SheetNo. 2
(Revised)
Schedule 1 - continued CLASSIFICATION OF SERVICE
RATE PER
Residential, Farm and Non-Farm, Schools & Churches UNIT

Multiple Units:

Service supplied under rate Schedule 1 is based on service to a single unit at one point of
delivery through a single meter. Where the premises consist of two or more units, Schedule
1 may be applied only if separate circuits are provided without cost to the distributor. If it is
not practical to provide for separate metering of each unit, the entire premises will be served
under the appropriate commercial rate.

Commercial Use of Portions of Dwellings:

The residential rate is not applicable to the space in the dwelling which is regularly used for
commercial purposes, such-as-office beauty sh
actidties. In such cases, if a separate circuit is prowded a! no cost to the Dlstrlbutor for the
portion of the dwelling so used, the residential rate will be applied to the balance of the power
requirements and the commercial rate will be applied to the portion of the dwelling used for
commercial purposes. If a separate circuit is not provided, the entire power requirements of the
premises must be billed under the commercial rate. If the premises are used primarily- as a
prlvate dwelllng and space in the dwelling occas:onaliy used for commercial purposes-such-as

. s-, the residential rate should

be apphed to the entlre power requwements

Domestic Power Use:

A farm on which is located a single dwelling and its appurtenances including barns- demestic
servanis-guarers. and out-buildings, and which processes only its own products, shall be
considered a domestic farm and shall be entitled to the residential rate for all of its power
requirements including motors up to and including rated capacity of seven and one-half horse-
power (7 1/2 H. P.). Motors of capacities larger than seven and one-half horsepower (71/2 H.P.)
shall not be installed except by written permission of the Cooperative. Service to dwellings other
than the main buildings sueh-astenant-heuses-ete— must be separately metered and billed
under the residential rate. This interpretation is not applicable to commercial dairies as defined
below.

DATE OF ISSUE —Movember 72013 June 5. 2020
Month/DatefYear

DATE EFFECTIVE Oeteber28 2043 July 52020
Month/Date/Year

ISSUED BY

(Signature of Officer)
TITLE President / CE

BY AUTHORITY OF ORDER OF THE PUBLIC SERVICE
COMMISSION IN CASE NO. __2043-00033 2020-00131 DATED__10/28/43




MEADE COUNTY RURAL ELECTRIC
COOPERATIVE CORPORATION

FOR  Entire Territory served
Community, Town or City

PS.C.No. 134

First (Original)  Sheet No. 3
Revised

(Revised)

Canceling P.S.C.No. 3130

Original  (Original) SheetNo. 3

(Revised)

Schedule 1 - continued

CLASSIFICATION OF SERVICE

Residential, Farm and Non-Farm, Schools & Churches

RATE PER
UNIT

Commercial Farm Use:

1. Farm use shall be metered and billed under the commercial lighting and power rate if
other dwellings beside the main dwelling are not separately metered and are served through the
same point qf delivery, or if products of other farms are processed for sale. The main dwelling

and demestic-servants other living quarters may be metered and billed under the residential rate (1)

if a

separate circuit is provided for all of the other farm uses in cases where products of other farms

are processed for sale.

2. If afarm customer's barn, pump house or other out-buildings are located at such
distances from his residence as to make it impractical to supply service thereto through his
residential meter, the separate meter required to measure service to such remotely located
buildings will be considered a separate service contract and billed as a separate customer,

3. All motors rated above one horsepower (1 H.P.) must be 240 volt motors. All motor
installations, fluorescent and other gaseous lighting installations must conform with the

Cooperative's power factor correction rule applicable thereto.

4. Three-phase service will not be made available under Rate Schedule 1. Consumers
requiring three-phase service shall be billed on the Cooperative's applicable power rate subject

to the rules and regulations covering such service.

DATE OF ISSUE MNevember8-2043 June 5, 2020
Month/Date/Year
DATE EFFECTIVE Detober 202043 July 5 2020
Month/Datel/Year
ISSUED BY
(Signature of Officer)
TITLE President / CEO

BY AUTHORITY OF ORDER OF THE PUBLIC SERVICE
COMMISSION IN CASE NO. _ 2043-00033 2020-00131

DATED-18/28/2043



FOR  Entire Territory served

Community, Town or City

P.8.C.No. 132
First (Original) SheetNo. 4
Revised
(Revised)
MEADE COUNTY RURAL ELECTRIC
COOPERATIVE CORPORATION Canceling  P.S.C.No. 3234
Original  (Original) SheetNo. 4
(Revised)
Schedule 1 - continued CLASSIFICATION OF SERVICE
RATE PER
UNIT

Residential, Farm and Non-Farm, Schools & Churches

Addendum — Underground Service
The Cooperative will install underground distribution lines to an applicant under the following
conditions:

1. Applicant shall be required to pay to the Cooperative an amount equal to an “estimated average
cost differential” if any, between the average or representative cost of underground distribution
service and of equivalent overhead distribution service within the utility service areas.

2. The Cooperative will construct underground distribution facilities to the service adequate to
render single phase 120/240 volt service.

3. Three-phase primary mains or feeders required for a service to supply local distribution or to
serve individual three-phase loads may be overhead unless underground is required by
governmental authorities or chosen by applicant, in either of which case the differential cost of
underground shall be borne by the applicant. See Exhibit A.

4. Applicant shall grant a right-of-way satisfactory to the Cooperative for the installation, operation
and maintenance of its underground facilities.

5. Service line to house shall be installed and ready for inspection at the same time as the
residence. Trench is to be left open until inspection has been made.

6. The applicant shall have the choice of performing all necessary trenching and backfilling in
accordance with the Cooperative's specifications or shall pay for such service using the following
rates:

Secondary Ditch Primary Ditch
Opening and closing ditch $4.80 per foot $6.60 per foot

An additional moving fee of $360.00 shall be charged.

DATE OF ISSUE —MNovember6-2043—  June 5, 2020
Month/Date/Year

DATE EFFECTIVE Ootober28 2043 July 5. 2020
Month/Date/Year

ISSUED BY

(Signature of Officer)
TITLE President / CEO

BY AUTHORITY OF ORDER OF THE PUBLIC SERVICE
COMMISSION IN CASE NO. _ 204300033 2020-00131 _ DATED__10/28H43




MEADE COUNTY RURAL ELECTRIC
COOPERATIVE CORPORATION

FOR  Entire Territory served

Community, Town or City
P.S.C.No. 132

First (Original)  Sheet No. 5

Revised

e —

(Revised)

Canceling P.S.C.No. 3231

Qriginal (Original)  Sheet No. 5
(Revised)
Schedule 1 - continued CLASSIFICATION OF SERVICE
RATE PER
UNIT

Residential, Farm and Non-Farm, Schools & Churches

7. The estimated cost differential per foot of conductor is for normal soil conditions and does not
include rock removal or road crossing costs. The applicant shall have the choice of performing the
necessary rock removal and road crossing or shall pay for such services using the following rates:

Rock Removal

Three phase primary $173.00 per foot
Single phase primary $173.00 per foot
Service or secondary $108.00 per foot

An additional moving fee of $360.00 shall be charged.

8. The estimated cost differential per foot of conductor is filed herewith as Exhibit “A™.

Road Crossing

$48.00 per foot
$46.50 per foot
$46.50 per foot

DATE OF ISSUE November 82043 June 5, 2020
Month/Date/Year

DATE EFFECTIVE Ostober20-2043—July 5. 2020
Month/Date/Year

ISSUED BY

(Signature of Officer)
TITLE President / CEO

BY AUTHORITY OF ORDER OF THE PUBLIC SERVICE
COMMISSION IN CASE NO. __2043-88833— 2020-00131 DATED

Sl




FOR  Entire Territory served
Community, Town or City
P.S.C.No. 132
First (Original) SheetNo. 6
Revised
(Revised)
MEADE COUNTY RURAL ELECTRIC
COOPERATIVE CORPORATION Canceling  P.S.C.No. 3234
_Original _ (Original) SheetNo. 6
(Revised)
Schedule 1 - continued CLASSIFICATION OF SERVICE
RATE PER
UNIT

Residential, Farm and Non-Farm, Schools & Churches

EXHIBIT A

AVERAGE UNDERGROUND COST DIFFERENTIAL

Average cost per foot of underground service
Average cost per foot of overhead service

Average cost differential per foot of service

Note: Above estimated cost for underground does not include the cost of trenching, backfilling, rock

removal or road crossing costs.

Three Phase Sinale Phase
$23.53 $14.71
$7.51 $4.30
$16.02 $10.41

DATE OF ISSUE —November6-2013-  June 5, 2020
Month/Date/Year
DATE EFFECTIVE B s July 5,2020
Month/DatefYear
ISSUED BY
(Signature of Officer)
TITLE President / CEO

BY AUTHORITY OF ORDER OF THE PUBLIC SERVICE
COMMISSION IN CASE NO. _ 201360033  2020-00131

DATED__10/20/43




FOR All Territory Served

PSC KY NO. 43 |

Meade County Rural Electric Cooperative Corporation
P. 0. Box 489 ORIGINAL SHEET NO.__ 22 7
Brandenburg. Kentucky 40108

PREPAY SERVICE

STANDARD RIDER:
Meade County Rural Electric Cooperative Corporation’s Prepay Service (“Prepay™) is an optional rider to
Rate Schedule [-Residential, Farm & Non Farm, Schools and Churches.

AVAILABILITY:

All Rate Schedule 1 — Residential, Farm & Non Farm, Schools and Churches, excluding accounts on
Levelized/Fixed Budget, Automatic Bank Draft, Net Metering, and accounts greater than 200 Amp Service
within the territory served by Meade County.

DAILY RATE:
Consumer Charge no kWh usage § 65720703 (0
Energy Charge per kWh: $ 0.097665
Prepay Service Fee: $ 0.32

TERMS & CONDITIONS:

Members who qualify as defined above in “Availability” may choose to voluntarily enroll their electric
account(s) in the Prepay service and are subject to the following:

1. Each member electing Prepay will be subject to all other applicable rules and regulations which apply
to members using the residential tariff, without the Prepay rider.

8]

Members shall have internet access or the ability to receive electronic communications, including
texting services to participate in the voluntary Prepay service.

3. Any member choosing to enroll in Prepay shall sign a Prepay Service Agreement (**Agreement”).
The Agreement shall remain in effect until the member notifies Meade County RECC, in writing, to
cancel the Agreement.

4, Upon written cancellation of the Agreement, the member shall be subject to the conditions of the
applicable tariff, without the Prepay rider. In accordance with Meade County’s current Rules

DATE OF ISSUE Apri15204S June 5. 2020
MONTH / DATE / YEAR
DATE EFFECTIVE Apr5 2045 July 5.2020
MONTH / DATE / YEAR
ISSUED BY
SIGNATURE OF OFFICER
TITLE President/CEQ

BY AUTHORITY OF ORDER OF THE PUBLIC SERVICE
COMMISSION IN CASE NO.2844-060414  2020-00131 DATED_Apsls 2015
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10.

PREPAY SERVICE (CONTINUED)

and Regulations, this may require a security deposit to be paid by the member at the time of
cancellation of the Prepay service.

The Consumer Charge and Energy Charge will be the same as Meade County’s applicable residential
tariff. The Energy Charge per kWh will be calculated and deducted from the member’s account on a
daily basis. The Consumer Charge and Prepay Service Fee will also be deducted from the member’s
account on a daily basis.

The Fuel Cost Adjustment and Environmental Surcharge will be charged or credited to the account
daily. The Fuel Adjustment and Environmental Surcharge will be the rates in effect for the time of
update.

The Prepay account will not be subject to deposits, late fees, disconnect fees, and reconnect fees.

At the time Prepay is activated for an account, the initial purchase is recommended to be a minimum
of $100.00. Purchases beyond the point of activation will be at an increment of the member’s
choosing, with a minimum purchase being $25.00. Members may apply funds to their prepay
account(s) by most methods as post pay and include the following: credit card, debit card, check and
cash. Payment can be made via the website, phone and in person at one of Meade County’s offices.
Payment methods are listed on Meade County’s website, www.mcrecc.com.

When an existing member selects to participate in Prepay and has a security deposit on file, the
deposit and any accumulated interest will not be refunded. The deposit will be converted into a credit
on the Prepay account going forward. No crediting of the deposit to the Prepay account shall occur if
the deposit is needed to cover a pre-existing indebtedness by the member or the member has another
account(s) which does not have a satisfactory credit history, the remaining credit will be transferred
as a deposit to the unsecured account(s).

If a member who has not participated in Prepay is disconnected for non-payment, the member may
request to be reconnected and enrolled in Prepay. If the member is unable to pay the account balance
in full for the disconnected account, a payment plan whereby future purchases for Prepay will be split
70/30 until the old debt is retired will be established. Seventy percent (70%) of the payments will be
applied to new purchases and thirty percent (30%) will be applied towards retirement of the previous
balance minus any applicable deposit.
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PREPAY SERVICE (CONTINUED)

. A prior member, who previously received service from Meade County and discontinued service

without paying his/her final bill, (i.e. an uncollectible account/bad debt) will be required to pay the
past due amount prior to establishing prepay service. If the member is unable to pay the account
balance in full, a payment plan whereby future purchases for Prepay will be split 70/30 until the old
debt is retired will be established. Seventy percent (70%) of the payments will be applied to new
purchases and thirty percent (30%) will be applied towards retirement of the previous balance.

12. Once an account is enrolled in Prepay, the account will no longer be eligible for additional payment
arrangements.

13. Financial assistance from community action or other agencies received for a Prepay account will be
credited to the balance of the Prepay account upon receipt of a voucher or other supporting official
documents of commitment from the agency providing assistance.

14. When a Prepay account reaches a balance of $25.00, an automated message(s) will be processed and
sent to the member and no written notice will be sent by mail.

15. If a payment on a Prepay account is returned for any reason, the account is subject to the service fee
as provided in Meade County’s Rules and Regulations.

16. Members presenting a Winder Hardship Reconnect, Certificate of Need or Medical Certificate as
provided in 807 KAR 5:006, Sections 14, 15, and 16 will be removed from Prepay and the account
will return to the status of a post-pay account.

17. A monthly paper bill will not be mailed to a member who elects to participate in Prepay. The
member may view their Prepay account status on Meade County’s website. Based on the Prepay
notification system, the account should not be eligible for past-due status, therefore; a delinquent
notice will not be processed or mailed.

18. A Prepay account will be disconnected if the balance of the account becomes negative. The account
will be disconnected regardless of weather/temperature as the member is responsible for ensuring that
the Prepay account is adequately funded. Meade County discourages participation in the Prepay
program if the member cannot ensure proper funding.
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PREPAY SERVICE (CONTINUED)

If a Prepay account is disconnected due to lack of funds or any other reason, Meade County shall be
held harmless for any damages due to loss of energy service. Likewise, if the account is disconnected
and the member applied funds to the Prepay account thus causing the account to be reconnected, the
member accepts full responsibility for any damages to the location caused by the account being
reconnected and holds the Cooperative harmless from any damages arising from such a reconnection.

Prepay accounts will be billed daily with a month-end billing being processed to finalize any applicable
miscellaneous fees such as billing contracts, WinterCare, etc.

If a request is made to disconnect the service at a Prepay account, any remaining balance will be
transferred to other active accounts, if applicable, or refunded in form of check.

Should damage occur to the equipment as a result of malice or neglect by the member, the member
shall be billed for the replacement cost of the equipment.

. Members may check the status of a Prepay account by utilizing Meade County’s website or by calling

the office at any time.

The member shall pay any fees as applicable by the Cooperative bylaws and the Cooperative
Rules and Regulations as approved by the Kentucky Public Service Commission and as may
be required for the member to participate in the Prepay electric service program.
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Exhibit B
Page 1 of 2
MEADE COUNTY RURAL ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE CORPORATION
AGREEMENT FOR PREPAY SERVICE

Member Name Home Phone

Account No. Cell Phone

Service Address Cell Carrier
E-mail

The undersigned (hereinafter called the “member™) hereby applies for participation in the voluntary Prepay service offered to
members of Meade County Rural Electric Cooperative Corporation. (hereinafter called the “Cooperative™), and agrees to the
following terms and conditions:

I

2

The member shall purchase electric energy from the Cooperative in accordance with the present and any future rate
schedule of the Cooperative on a Prepay basis for the above referenced account.

The member understands that the terms and conditions set forth in the member’s Application for Membership continue
to apply in addition to the terms and conditions of this Agreement for Prepay Service, subject, however, to any changes
set forth in this agreement.

The member shall pay any fees as applicable by the Cooperative bylaws and the Cooperative Rules and Regulations
as approved by the Kentucky Public Service Commission and as may be required for the member to participate in the
Prepay electric service program.

Any deposit on the above referenced account will be applied to the final billing for the post-pay account before the
account changes to Prepay service. Any credit remaining on the account will be applied to the Prepay account.
However, if the member has another account(s) which does not have a satisfactory credit history, the remaining credit
will be transferred as a deposit to the unsecured account(s). The deposit will only be refunded by applying it to the
member’s account(s) as described above.

Those members participating in Prepay service will not be mailed a monthly paper bill for electric usage or other
applicable fees or charges. Account information may be obtained from the web portal or by contacting the office.

The member shall pay a daily program fee and a daily consumer customer charge. This amount will be in addition to
the charges included for the fuel cost adjustment and environmental surcharge rates which will be charged or credited
to the account based upon the effective rates. The effective rates of the fuel adjustment and environmental surcharge
will be the rates in effect when kWh'’s are used.

During any interruption, outage and/or disconnections, the customer charge, Prepay fee and any security light charges
will continue to accrue.

If a member changes any of the contact information (i.e. e-mail address, phone number, etc.) provided on this
agreement, it is the responsibility of the member to notify the Cooperative of any such changes immediately. It is the
member’s responsibility to manage their own communication devices.

When the amount of funds remaining on a Prepay account reaches the established threshold of $25.00, an automated
message will be sent to the member rather than a traditional, written notice sent by U.S. Mail. The Cooperative shall
not be responsible for any failure of the member to receive the automated message for any reason(s).

The member shall be responsible for regularly monitoring the balance on the Prepay account and understands that the
electric service will be subject to disconnection without any written, verbal or other method of notification from the
Cooperative to the member once the balance of the account reaches a negative balance. If the member cannot ensure
proper funding, the Cooperative recommends the member not utilize the Prepay service.

. Budget billing, automatic draft, net metering, and three-phase accounts are not eligible for Prepay service.

Should the member have a payment returned for any reason, the returned payment will be charged to the Prepay
account. The member’s account shall also be charged a return payment fee as referenced in the Cooperative’s PSC
approved Rules and Regulations in addition to the returned payment amount. If there are not sufficient funds to cover
the returned item and fee, the account will be disconnected immediately.

. If a Prepay account is disconnected due to lack of funds or any other reason. the Cooperative shall be held harmless

for any damages due to loss of energy service. Likewise, if the account is disconnected and the member applied funds
to the Prepay account thus causing the account to be reconnected, the member accepts full responsibility for any
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damages to the location caused by the account being reconnected and holds the Cooperative harmless from any
damages arising from such a reconnection.

By signing this agreement, the member affirms there are no residents in the home that currently have medical
conditions that will be impacted by loss of service. Should this status change, the member shall contact the
Cooperative in writing, at which time the account will be removed from Prepay service. It is the responsibility of the
member to confirm the Cooperative is in receipt of the written request for removal from Prepay service.

. A Prepay account will be disconnected if the balance of the account becomes negative. The account will be

disconnected regardless of weather or temperature as the member is responsible for ensuring that the Prepay account
is adequately funded.

. Financial assistance from community action or other agencies received for a Prepay account will be credited to the

balance of the Prepay account upon receipt of a voucher or other supporting official documents of commitment from
the agency providing assistance.

If a member on a Prepay account presents a Certificate of Need, a Medical Certificate or qualifies for a Winter
Hardship Reconnect, the member shall be required to transfer to a post-pay service account,

The member authorizes the Cooperative to transfer the unpaid balance of $ from the member’s
post-pay account to the Prepay service account. The member also authorizes the kWh used since the last bill date
until the meter is changed to Prepay service to be calculated and transferred to the Prepay account. The member
further agrees that thirty percent (30%) of any future purchases for funding the Prepay account shall be applied to the
balance until said balance is paid in full. Any fees/penalties (returned payment, meter tampering, etc.) shall be paid
before any purchases for funding is applied to the member’s Prepay account.

. For a prior member who previously received service from the Cooperative and discontinued service without paying

his/her final bill, (i.e. an uncollectable account/bad debt), the member agrees that if the uncollectable account/bad
debt is not paid in full upon enrolling in the Prepay Program, thirty (30%) of any payments made on this account in
the future shall be applied to the balance until said uncollectable account/bad debt is paid in full. The member
authorizes the Cooperative to transfer the uncollectable account/bad debt balance of $ to the Prepay
Account.

. A Prepay account shall not be eligible for future payment plan arrangements.
. If a member wishes to disconnect service, the member shall be refunded any balance on the Prepay account. Any

refund will be processed in the same manner as a post-pay account refund.

. The member, by signing this agreement, confirms the ability to receive electronic communications which is required

to be eligible for the Prepay service.

. The Prepay agreement shall be in effect for (1) year. After one year, the member may elect to opt out of the Prepay

program by submitting a request for cancelation to the Cooperative in writing. If Prepay service is ended. the member
must meet the requirements of a post-pay account for continued service.

Members may apply funds to a Prepay account by most payment methods available for post-pay service and provided
on the Cooperative’s website at: www.mcrecc.com

The undersigned agrees that Cooperative personnel has comprehensively explained this Prepay program and have
fully informed the member of all aspects of the program.

Member Signature: SSN: Date:

Member Signature: S8N: Date:

CSR Signature: Date:

Preferred Method of notification is (please check one): [] E-Mail [ Text

OFFICE USE ONLY

SO Number Date Installed
Customer NO. Initials
| Comments




Meade County Rural Electric Cooperative Corporation
Case No. 2020-00131
Streamlined Rate Adjustment Procedure Pilot Program
Filing Requirements / Exhibit List

Exhibit 4

807 KAR 5:001 Sec. 16(1)(b)(5)
Sponsoring Witness: Martin Littrel

Description of Iiling Requirement:

A statement that notice has been given in compliance with Section 17 of 807 KAR 5:001
with a copy of the notice.

Response:

Meade County has given notice, in compliance with 807 KAR 5:001 Section 17, as well
as in compliance with the Commission’s Orders entered December 11, 2018, March 26, 2019
and December 20, 2019, in Case No. 2018-00407. Specifically, as of the date Meade County
submitted this Application to the Commission, Meade County has: (1) posted at its place of
business a copy of the full notice required by the relevant regulation; (i1) posted to its website a
copy of the full notice required by the relevant regulation and a hyperlink to the location on the
Commission’s website where the case documents are available; (ii1) posted to its social media
account (Twitter) a link to its website where a copy of the full notice required by the relevant
regulation published may be found; (iv) published a copy of the abbreviated notice permitted by
the Commission’s December 20, 2019 Order in Kenfucky Living magazine, and (v) mailed a
copy of the abbreviated notice that appeared in Kentucky Living magazine to those Meade

County members who do not receive the publication.

Case No. 2020-00131
Application - Exhibit 4
Includes Attachment (7 pages)



Meade County Rural Electric Cooperative Corporation
Case No. 2020-00131
Streamlined Rate Adjustment Procedure Pilot Program
Filing Requirements / Exhibit List

A copy of the full notice, the abbreviated notice, the notice mailed to members who do
not receive the Kentucky Living publication and an affidavit regarding that mailing are attached.
Proof of Notice, which must be filed within forty-five (45) days of the submission of its

Application pursuant to 807 KAR 5:001, Section 17(3), is also attached.

Case No. 2020-00131
Application - Exhibit 4
Includes Attachment (7 pages)



NOTICE

Meade County Rural Electric Cooperative Corporation (“Meade County™) intends to propose a general
adjustment of its existing rates pursuant the streamline procedure pilot program by filing an application
with the Kentucky Public Service Commission (“KPSC™) on or about June 5, 2020 in Case No. 2020-
00131. The application will request that the proposed rates become effective July 5, 2020. Meade
County intends to propose an adjustment to the residential daily customer charge only. The present and
proposed rates for cach customer classification to which the proposed rates will apply are set forth
below:

Rates
Rate Class Rate Sched Present Proposed
Residential. Farm & Non-Farm, Schools & Churches 1
Customer Charge Per Day $0.572 $0.703
Energy Charge Per kWh (all kWh) 30.097665 3$0.097665
Prepay Service Rider Prepay
Customer Charge Per Day $0.572 $0.703
Energy Charge Per kWh (all kWwh) $0.097665 $0.097665
Prepay Service Fee $0.32 $0.32
Commercial Rate 2
Customer Charge Per Day $0.816 30.816
Energy Charge Per kWh (all kWwh) 30.104294 $0.104294
Three Phase Power Service, 0 KVA and Greater - 3
Phase Service 3
Customer Charge (per day)(0-100 KVA) $1.786 $1.786
Customer Charge (per day)(101-1,000 KVA) $3.118 $3.118
Customer Charge (per day)(Over 1,000 KVA) $4.450 $4.450
Energy Charge (per kWwh) $0.065794  $0.065794
Demand Charge (per kW) $11.00 $11.00
Three Phase Power Service, 0 KVA - 999 KVA- Optional
Time-of-Day (TOO) Rate 3A
Customer Charge (per day) $2.641 $2.641
Energy Charge (per kWh) $0.065794 $0.065794
Demand Charge (per kW) $11.00 $11.00
Large Power Service, 1,000 KVA and Larger (TOD) 4
Customer Charge (Utility XF) $805.93 $805.93
Customer Charge (Customer XF) $142.23 $142.23
Energy Charge (per kWh){First 300 KWWh/kW) $0.060553 $0.060553
Energy Charge (per KWh)(All remaining kWWh) $0.052130 $0.052130
Demand Charge (per kW) $10.50 $10.50
 Outdoor Lighting Service - Individual Consumers 5
175 Watt unmetered, per month $10.93 $10.93
175 Watt metered, per month $4.77 $4.77
400 Watt unmetered, per month $16.42 $16.42
400 Watt metered, per month $4.77 $4.77
| Street Lighting - Community, Municipalities, Towns 6
175 Watt, per month $9.98 $9.98
400 Watt, per month $15.72 $15.72




The amount of the change requested in both dollar amounts and percentage change for each customer
classification to which the proposed rates will apply 1s set forth below:

Increase
Rate Class Dollars Percent
Residential $1,404 525 352%
Small Comm $0 0%
3 Phase 30 0%
3 Ph0-998 KVATCD $0 0%
Large 1000 KVA TOD 30 0%
Private Qutdoor Lighting 30 0%
Street & Hwy Lights 30 0%
Total $1,404,525 2.60%

A person may examine the application and any related documents Meade County has filed with the
KPSC: (1) at the utility’s principal office address of 1351 Hwy 79, Brandenburg, Kentucky 40108,
during normal business hours; (i1) at the KPSC’s offices located at 211 Sower Boulevard, Frankfort,
Kentucky, 40601, Monday through Friday, 8:00 am. to 4:30 p.m; or (i1i) through the Public Service
Commission’s website at hitp://psc.kyv.cov. Additional information and links may also be accessed via
Meade County’s website (http:/www.merecc.com) and social media on Twitter (@MeadeCountyRECC.

A person may submit a timely written request for intervention to the Public Service Commission, Post
Office Box 613, Frankfort, Kentucky 40602, establishing the grounds for the request including the status
and interest of the party. The Commission is required to take action on Meade County’s application
within 75 days of its filing. Comments regarding the application may be submitted to the KPSC through
its website or by mail to Public Service Commission, Post Office Box 6135, Frankfort, Kentucky 40602.
The rates contained in this notice are the rates proposed by Meade County but the Public Service
Commission may order rates to be charged that differ from the proposed rates contained in this notice.



NOTICE

Meade County Rural Electric Cooperative Corporation (“Meade County™) intends to propose a general
adjustment of its existing rates pursuant the streamline procedure pilot program by filing an application
with the Kentucky Public Service Commission (“KPSC™) on or about June 5, 2020 in Case No. 2020-
00131. The application will request that the proposed rates become effective July 5, 2020.

Meade County intends to propose an adjustment to the residential daily customer charge only. The
present and proposed rates for each customer classification to which the proposed rates will apply are set
forth below:

Rates
Rate Class Present Propesed
Residential Service: Rate 1
Customer Charge Per Day $0.572 $0.703
Energy Charge Per kWh (all kvvh) $0.09767 $0.09767

No revisions are proposed to anv other charges or Rate Schedules.

The amount of the change requested in both dollar amounts and percentage change for cach customer
classification to which the proposed rates will apply is set forth below:

Increase
_ Rate Class Dollars  Percent
Residential $1.404 525 352%
Small Comm 30 0%
3 Phase 30 0%
3 Ph 0-992 KVA TOD 30 0%
Large 1000 KVA TOD 30 0%
Private Qutdoor Lighting 30 0%
Street & Hwy Lights 30 0%
Total $1.,404 525 2.60%

Additional information, links, and a copy of Meade County’s full notice conceming its proposed rate
adjustment can be found at Meade County’s principal offices (1351 Hwy 79, Brandenburg, Kentucky
40108), its website (https://www.merecc.com) and via social media on Twitter (@MeadeCountyRECC.

A person may submit a timely written request for intervention to the KPSC, 211 Sower Boulevard, Post
Office Box 615, Frankfort, Kentucky 40602, establishing the grounds for the request including the status
and interest of the party. If the KPSC does not receive a written request for intervention within thirty
(30) days of initial publication or mailing of the notice, the KPSC may take final action on the
application. The KPSC’s phone number is (502) 564-3940 and its website is http://psc.ky.gov. The
Commission is required to take action on Meade County’s application within 75 days of its filing. The
rates contained in this notice are the rates proposed by Meade County but the Public Service
Commission may order rates to be charged that differ from the proposed rates contained in this notice.



P.O. Box 489

Brandenburg, KY 40108-0489
270-422-2162

Fax: 270-422-4705

Meade County RECC

NOTICE

Meade County Rural Electric Cooperative Corporation (“Meade County”) intends to propose a general adjustment
of its existing rates pursuant the streamline procedure pilot program by filing an application with the Kentucky
Public Service Commission (“KPSC”) on or about June 5, 2020 in Case No. 2020-00131. The application will
request that the proposed rates become effective July 5, 2020.

Meade County intends to propose an adjustment to the residential daily customer charge only. The present and
proposed rates for each customer classification to which the proposed rates will apply are set forth below:

Rates
Rate Class Present Proposed
Residential Service: Rate 1 -
Customer Charge Per Day $0.572 $0.703
Energy Charge Per kWh (all kWh) $0.09767 $0.09767

No revisions are proposed to any other charges or Rate Schedules.

The amount of the change requested in both dollar amounts and percentage change for each customer classification
to which the proposed rates will apply is set forth below:

Increase
Rate Class Dollars Percent
Residential $1,404 525 3.52%
Small Comm $0 0%
3 Phase $0 0%
3 Ph 0-999 KVA TOD $0 0%
Large 1000 KVA TOD $0 0%
Private Qutdoor Lighting $0 0%
Street & Hwy Lights $0 0%
Total $1,404,525 2.60% :

Additional information, links, and a copy of Meade County’s full notice concerning its proposed rate adjustment
can be found at Meade County’s principal offices (1351 Hwy 79, Brandenburg, Kentucky 40108), its website
(https://www.mcrecc.com) and via social media on Twitter @MeadeCountyRECC.

A person may submit a timely written request for intervention to the KPSC, 211 Sower Boulevard, Post Office Box

615, Frankfort, Kentucky 40602, establishing the grounds for the request including the status and interest of the
party. If the KPSC does not receive a written request for intervention within thirty (30) days of initial publication
or mailing of the notice, the KPSC may take final action on the application. The KPSC’s phone number is (502)
564-3940 and its website is http://psc.ky.gov. The Commission is required to take action on Meade County’s
application within 75 days of its filing. The rates contained in this notice are the rates proposed by Meade County
but the Public Service Commission may order rates to be charged that differ from the proposed rates contained
in this notice.

A Touchstone Energy® Cooperative KT

Meade County RECC is an equal opportunity provider and employer



P.O. Box 489
Brandenburg, KY 40108-0489
270-422-2162

Meade Cllnt CC Fax: 270-422-4705

AFFIDAVIT OF MAILING
OF HEARING NOTICE

State of Kentucky )

County of Meade )

Comes now the Affiant, Anna Swanson, in her capacity as Vice President of Accounting and
Finance for Meade County Rural Electric Cooperative Corporation, and, after being duly sworn,
does hereby affirm that a copy of the attached Notice was mailed to those members of Meade
County Rural Electric Cooperative Corporation who are not subscribed to receive a copy of the
June 2020 KENTUCKY LIVING, on May 29, 2020.

Anna Swanson
Vice President of Accounting & Finance
Meade County Rural Electric Cooperative Corporation

Sworn to and subscribed before me, a Notary Public,

This 2" day of June, 2020.
d (ne &) A&ﬁmaﬂo

Notary Public, State of Kentucky

My Commission Expires: L[’ [2 2

Commission #: 59 '—) L) 97

A Touchstone Energy® Cooperative ﬂTﬁ

Meade County RECC is an equal opportunity provider and employer



Meade County Rural Electric Cooperative Corporation (“Meade County”) intends to propose a general
adjustment of its existing rates pursuant the streamline procedure pilot program by filing an application with
the Kentucky Public Service Commission (“KPSC”) on or about june 5, 2020, in Case No. 2020-00131. The
application will request that the proposed rates become effective July 5, 2020.

Meade County intends to propose an adjustment to the residential daily customer charge only. The present
and proposed rates for each customer classification to which the proposed rates will apply are set forth below:

RATES
Rate Class Present Proposed
Residential Service: Rate 1
Customer Charge per day $0.572 $0.703
Energy Charge Per kWh
(all kWh) $0.09767 $0.09767

No revisions are proposed to any other charges or rate schedules.
The amount of the change requested in both dollar amounts and percentage change for each customer classifi-
cation to which the proposed rates will apply is set forth below:

INCREASE

Rate Class Dollars Percent
Residential $1,404,525 3.52%
Small Comm $0 0%

3 Phase $0 0%

3 Ph 0-999 KVA TOD $0 0%
Large 1000 KVA TOD $0 0%
Private Outdoor Lighting $0 0%
Street & Hwy Lights $0 0%
Total $1,404,525 2.60%

Additional information, links and a copy of Meade County’s full notice concerning its proposed rate
adjustment can be found at Meade County’s principal office, 1351 Hwy 79, Brandenburg, KY 40108, its
website at www.mcrecc.com and via social media on Twitter @ MeadeCountyRECC.

A person may submit a timely written request for intervention to the Kentucky Public Service Commission,
211 Sower Boulevard, PO Box 615, Frankfort, KY 40602, establishing the grounds for the request including the
status and interest of the party. If the KPSC does not receive a written request for intervention within thirty
(30) days of initial publication or mailing of the notice, the KPSC may take final action on the application. The
KPSC’s phone number is (502) 564-3940 and its website is https://psc.ky.gov. The Commission is required to
take action on Meade County’s application within 75 days of its filing. The rates contained in this notice are the
rates proposed by Meade County, but the Kentucky Public Service Commission may order rates to be charged
that differ from the proposed rates contained in this notice.




Kentucky
LlVIng Celebrating the energy of your community

AFFIDAVIT OF MAILING
OF HEARING NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the June 2020 issue of KENTUCKY
LIVING, bearing official notice of a hearing of PSC Case No. 2020-00131, for
the purposes of proposing a general adjustment of existing rates of MEADE
COUNTY RURAL ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE CORPORATION, was
entered as direct mail on May 27, 2020.

St Theis Arodie,

Anita Travis Richter
Editor
Kentucky Living
County of Jefferson
State of Kentucky
Sworn to and subscribed before me, a Notary Public, K ue %tgt_? z\é L
This o2.5 day of /W1 w , 2020. Explres 31

My commission expires 5 / / uj oD

Tore £Zpens

Notary Public, §t\ate of Kentucky

Kentucky Association of Electric Cooperatives Inc.
P.O. Box 321701 Louisville, KY 40232
1630 Lyndon Farm Court{Louisville, KY 40223

(502) 451-2430
(800) KY-LIVING (800) 595-4846
www.kentuckyliving.com



Meade County Rural Electric Cooperative Corporation
Case No. 2020-00131
Streamlined Rate Adjustment Procedure Pilot Program
Filing Requirements / Exhibit List

Exhibit 5

807 KAR 5:001 Sec. 16(2) / KRS 278.180
Sponsoring Witness: Martin Littrel

Description of Iiling Requirement:

Notice of intent. A utility with gross annual revenues greater than 35,000,000 shall notify
the commission in writing of its intent to file a rate application at least thirty (30) days,
but not more than sixty (60) days, prior to filing its application.

(a) The notice of intent shall state if the rate application will be supported by a
historical test period or a fully forecasted test period.

(b) Upon filing the notice of intent, an application may be made to the commission for
permission to use an abbreviated form of newspaper notice of proposed rate increases
provided the notice includes a coupon that may be used to obtain a copy from the
applicant of the full schedule of increases or rate changes.

(c) Upon filing the notice of intent with the commission, the applicant shall mail to
the Attorney (General's Office of Rate Intervention a copy of the notice of intent or send
by electronic mail in a portable document format, to rateintervention(@ag.ky.gov.

Response:

Meade County, by counsel, notified the Commigsion in writing of its intent to file a rate
application using a historical test year ended December 31, 2019, by letter dated April 17, 2020.
A copy of this letter (in portable document format) was also sent by electronic mail to

rateintervention(@ag ky.gov. Please see attached.

Case No. 2020-00131
Application - Exhibit S
Includes Attachment (1 page)



BRITE & HOPKINS, PLLC
ATTORNEYS AT LAW
107 S. MAIN STREET, P.O. BOX 309
HARDINSBURG, KENTUCKY 40143-0309
PHONE (270) 756-2184, FAX (270) 756-1214

THOMAS C. BRITE STEPHEN G. HOPKINS
e-mail: thrite@bbtel.com e-mail: shopkins@bblel com

April 17,2020

Via Email

Mr. Kent Chandler

Executive Director

Kentucky Public Service Commission
211 Sower Boulevard

Frankfort, KY 40602

Re: IN THE MATTER OF: THE ELECTRONIC APPLICATION OF MEADE COUNTY
RURAL ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE CORPORATION FOR A GENERAL ADJUSTMENT
OF RATES PURSUANT TO STREAMLINED PROCEDURE PILOT PROGRAM
ESTABLISHED IN CASE NO. 2018-00407: Case No. 2020-00___

Dear Mr, Chandler:

Please be advised that this law firm represents Meade County Rural Electric Cooperative
Corporation (“Meade County™) in connection with the above-referenced matter. In accordance
with 807 KAR 5:001 Section 16(2), please accept this correspondernce as written notification from
Meade County to the Kentucky Public Service Commission that, no sooner than thirty (30) days
and no later than sixty (60) from your receipt of this letter, Meade County intends to file an
application requesting a general adjustment of its existing rates pursuant to the streamlined
procedure pilot program outlined in the Commission’s Orders entered December 11, 2018,
December 20, 2019 and March 26, 2019, in Case No. 2018-00407. Consistent with those Orders
and 807 KAR 5:001 Section 16(2)(a), Meade County states that its rate application will be
supported by a historical test year ended December 31, 2019,

Finally, please find enclosed a completed Notice of Election of Use of Electronic Filing
Procedures. I appreciate your assistance with this matter, and please do not hesitate to contact me
with any questions or concerns.

Respectfully submitted,

ﬂft:r;";

Thomas C. Brite

cc: Attorney General’s Office of Rate Intervention
via email: rateintervention@ag.ky.gov



Meade County Rural Electric Cooperative Corporation
Case No. 2020-00131
Streamlined Rate Adjustment Procedure Pilot Program
Filing Requirements / Exhibit List

Exhibit 6

807 KAR 5:001 Sec. 16(4)(a)
Sponsoring Witness: John Wolfram

Description of Iiling Requirement:

A complete description and quantified explanation for all proposed adjustments with
proper support for proposed changes in price or activity levels, if applicable, and other
Jactors that may affect the adjustment.

Response:

A complete description and qualified explanation for all proposed rate adjustments are
contained in the Application and Exhibits filed by Meade County. Please also see the testimony

of John Wolfram provided at Exhibit 9 and, in particular, Exhibit JW-2 thereof.

Case No. 2020-00131
Application - Exhibit 6
No Attachment



Meade County Rural Electric Cooperative Corporation
Case No. 2020-00131
Streamlined Rate Adjustment Procedure Pilot Program
Filing Requirements / Exhibit List

Exhibit 7

807 KAR 5:001 Sec. 16(4)(b)
Sponsoring Witness: Martin Littrel

Description of Iiling Requirement:

If the utility has gross annual revenues greater than $3,000,000, the written testimony of
each witness the utility proposes to use to support its application.

Response:

In support of its Application, Meade County provides written testimony from three (3)

withesses:

e Mr. Martin Littrel, Meade County’s President and Chief Executive Officer, whose
testimony 1s included with this Exhibit 7;

e Ms. Anna Swanson, Meade County’s Vice President of Accounting and Finance, whose
testimony is included at Exhibit 8; and

e Mr. John Wolfram, expert consultant with Catalyst Consulting LLL.C, whose testimony is

included at Exhibit 9.

Case No. 2020-00131
Application - Exhibit 7
Includes Attachment (18 pages)



COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY

BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

In the Matter of:

THE ELECTRONIC APPLICATION OF )
MEADE COUNTY RURAL ELECTRIC )
COOPERATIVE CORPORATION )
FOR A GENERAL ADJUSTMENT OF ) Case No. 2020-00131
RATES PURSUANT TO STREAMLINED )
PROCEDURE PILOT PROGRAM )
ESTABLISHED IN CASE NO. 2018-00407 )

DIRECT TESTIMONY OF MARTIN LITTREL,
PRESIDENT AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER,
ON BEHALF OF MEADE COUNTY
RURAL ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE CORPORATION

Filed: June 5, 2020
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PLEASE STATE YOUR NAME, POSITION, AND BUSINESS ADDRESS.
My name 1s Martin W. Littrel, but T am referred to as Marty. I am the President
and CEO of Meade County Rural Electric Cooperative Corporation (“Meade
County” or the “Cooperative™). My business address is 1351 Highway 79,
Brandenburg, Kentucky 40108.

PLEASE BRIEFLY DESCRIBE YOUR PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE
AND EDUCATIONAL BACKGROUND.

I have enjoyed a nearly twenty (20) year affiliation with electric cooperatives as
an executive at multiple organizations and have developed a rich understanding
for the challenges and opportunities presented within this important industry. I
received a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Economics from the University of
Kentucky in 1997. 1 assumed my current position of President and Chief
Executive Officer of Meade County in November 2015. Before working at
Meade County, I worked for Big Rivers Electric Corporation (“Big Rivers™) and
Kenergy Corp. (“Kenergy™). 1 started my electric utility career at Kenergy in
2001 holding the position of Key Accounts and Economic Development
Specialist. In 2008, I took a position at Big Rivers as the Manager of Member
Services assisting the member-owner cooperatives in energy efficiency programs,
key account management services, external affairs and economic development. I
was promoted to Director and eventually Managing Director of Communications
and Community Relations overseeing government relations, corporate
communications, community relations, public relations, risk management and

strategic planning for the electric generation and transmission cooperative. In
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November 2015, 1 became the president and CEO of Meade County. In this role,
I am responsible for the organization’s safe, affordable and reliable distribution of
electric service to the Cooperative’s 30,000 member-owners in six (6) Kentucky
counties.

PLEASE BRIEFLY DESCRIBE YOUR DUTIES AT MEADE COUNTY.

As the CEO, I oversee all departments at Meade County and lead an experienced
team responsible for the overall operational and financial success of the
organization. My primary duty is to ensure cooperative activities are completed
consistent with good business practices, established policies, regulatory oversight
and the direction provided by Meade County’s seven-member Board of Directors.
I also work extensively with our business partners at Big Rivers and the Kentucky
Association of Electric Cooperatives to ensure professional relationships remain
intact for the benefit of the Cooperative and its member-owners.

WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF YOUR TESTIMONY IN THIS
PROCEEDING?

The purpose of my testimony is first to provide a general overview of the
Cooperative’s business and existing retail electric distribution system. 1 will
describe the events that preceded the filing of this case, discuss the Cooperative’s
financial and operational condition, and explain the reasons behind the
Cooperative’s need to revise its existing rates to ensure the continued provision of
safe, reliable retail electric service to its member-owners.

ARE YOU SPONSORING ANY EXHIBITS?
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Yes. Attached to my testimony and labeled Exhibit ML-1 is a board excerpt from
the Meade County Board of Directors meeting minutes dated March 18, 2020,
pursuant to which Mecade County’s management was authorized and directed to
prepare and submit the Application my testimony supports.

PLEASE GENERALLY DESCRIBE THE COOPERATIVE’S BUSINESS.
Meade County is a not-for-profit, member-owned rural electric cooperative
corporation with its headquarters in Brandenburg, Kentucky. The Cooperative
provides retail electric service to approximately 30,000 customers in all or a
portion of Breckinridge, Grayson, Hancock, Hardin, Meade and Ohio Counties.
The Cooperative is one of three (3) Owner-Members of Big Rivers, which serves
as the wholesale electricity provider for the Cooperative. Meade County owns
and maintains approximately 3,243 miles of distribution lines connecting 18
substations. During the test year in this case, Meade County’s average residential
member-owner used 1,030 kWh per month.

WHEN DID MEADE COUNTY LAST SEEK A GENERAL ADJUSTMENT
OF ITS RATES?

Meade County’s last base rate case was filed in Case No. 2013-00033 n the
Matter of: Application Of Meade County Rural Electric Cooperative Corporation
For A General Adjustinent Of Rates And A Flow-Through Of Big Rivers Electric

Corporation's Rate Increase.’ The base rate changes stemming from that case

! Shortly thereafter, Meade County adjusted base rates to pass through the wholesale increase granted to
Big Rivers Electric Corporation ("Big Rivers") in Case No. 2013-00199, In The Matier Of: Application Of
Meade County Rural Electric Coaperative Corporation For Pass-Through Of Big Rivers Electric
Corporation Wholesale Rate Adjusiment. Meade County submitted its pass-through application pursuant to
the authority of KRS 278.455(2) and 807 KAR 5:007 in Case No. 2013-00231, In the Matter of:
Application Of Meade County Rural Electric Coaperative Corporation For Pass-Through Of Big Rivers

4
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went into effect less than ten years ago, on October 29, 2013, following their
approval by the Commission.

WHAT IS THE OVERALIL REASON THAT MEADE COUNTY IS
SEEKING A RATE REVISION AT THIS TIME?

Meade County’s Application generally, and specifically the written testimony
provided at Exhibits 7 through 9, underscores the necessity of the adjustment
requested by Meade County in this proceeding. Since Meade County’s most
recent general rate adjustment went into effect nearly seven years ago, Meade
County has experienced increased expenses in most areas of its operations. It has
been able to offset many of these costs through prudent changes in its employee
benefits and managing interest expense, however, essentially flat customer and
load growth have resulted in financial metrics that are below what is necessary to
uphold lender requirements. Moreover, Meade County’s existing rates do not
align with its cost of providing service, which makes its margins more susceptible
to volatility. Without an adjustment of its rates, Meade County’s undesirable and
insufficient rate structure will continue and thus put at risk not only the
Cooperative’s contractual relationships with its lenders, but also the safe and
reliable service its member-owners deserve and expect.

PLEASE PROVIDE SOME CONTEXT FOR WHY THIS IS THE CASE.

At year-end 2019, Mecade County completed the year with only $491,205 in
margins with total sales of $55,339,836. Put another way, in 2019, the

Cooperative suffered a margin loss in six of twelve months or 50 percent of the

Electric Corporation Wholesale Rate Adjustment. The Commission approved Meade County’s pass-
through of the Big Rivers’ rate increase for service rendered on and after February 1, 2014

5
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time during the 2019 calendar year, which totaled $1.198,365 in losses. This was
Meade County’s largest loss in margins since its last general rate case in 2013. In
comparison, Meade County’s 2013 margins were $1,900,024 at year-end, which
results in a 74 percent variance or $1,408,819 more than 2019 margins. Over a
five-year period, Meade County has gradually experienced a loss in margins with
each year growing progressively worse than the preceding year. This situation is
based on a combination of variables, including weather, flat energy sales, energy
efficiency influence along with inflationary pressures that threaten the
Cooperative’s financial metrics required by loan covenant agreements with
Cooperative Finance Corporation (“CFC”) and Rural Utility Service (“RUS™).
Similarly, Meade County’s Times Interest Earned Ratio (“TIER™) would equally
encounter a continual decrease over the past five years, dropping from 2.14 in
2014 to 1.23 by year-end 2019. This falls below the 1.25 minimum TIER
requirement allowed by the RUS. Additionally, Meade County’s 2019 Operating
Time Interest Earned Ratio (“OTIER™) was 0.98 and its debt service coverage
was 1.51. As we judiciously monitored our financial metrics, management and
the Board of Directors understood a rate adjustment would be required once our
TIER metric dropped below the RUS threshold of 1.25.

ARE MEADE COUNTY’S COSTS INCREASING?

Yes. Despite close supervision by management to minimize cost-escalation in
providing reliable electric service, the fact remains that overall expenses in nearly
every aspect of Meade County’s business operations have increased in recent

times. As a fiscally conservative electric cooperative, the Board and management
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team are very proud to have been able to successfully avoid increasing electric
rates to our member-owners for several years. We have carefully controlled
expenses since the organization’s last general rate proceeding in 2013. To build
consistent and transparent compensation decisions, Meade County has engaged a
third party to use comprehensive data and benchmarks based on industry
standards, company size, market region and talent levels to ensure the
Cooperative offers reasonable and well-defined compensation programs. This
measure has validated that our organization maintains equitable wage and benefit
expenses to avoid the risk of excessive labor market rates in our compensation
program.  Also, the Cooperative’s distribution operation and maintenance
(“O&M™) expenses have remained virtually flat for seven years, only rising 6
percent since 2013, Like most electric cooperatives, Meade County’s O&M costs
represent our second greatest expenditure (ranking behind purchased power
costs), representing 17.2 percent of the Cooperative’s 2019 total cost of electric
service. Our Cooperative has been diligent at keeping internal costs under
control, but market conditions make a rate increase unavoidable to offset
increases in the cost of materials, equipment, taxes, and other fixed and variable
costs required to operate the utility.

CAN MEADE COUNTY’S CURRENT RATES ADDRESS THESE
ISSUES?

No, not without revision. To better illustrate why, note that the cost of service
study (“COSS™) identifies that Meade County’s residential sector is the only

customer classification not recovering the cost to serve them. Therefore, a cross-
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subsidization is occurring from all other customer groups to benefit the residential
sector among Meade County’s consumer profile. Also, the COSS showed Meade
County’s residential cost base rate for its customer charge should be $31.09 per
month or $1.02 per day, which is 78 percent higher than our current rate.
Knowing this, Meade County’s management team and Board have been aware
that, as approximately 150-200 new residential member-owners are added to the
distribution system annually and the residential class comprises 76 percent of the
load profile based on revenue, eventually a residential rate adjustment would be
required to avoid perpetuating additional financial risk. To reduce the negative
rate of return among this customer class, an adjustment to the monthly residential
customer charge is warranted. This approach would gradually migrate Meade
County’s rate structure toward a more equitable rate design by reducing the
residential cross-subsidy while transferring greater cost recovery from the
variable charge to a more stable fixed charge.

This calculated movement will improve the cost recovery on the
residential class while allowing Meade County to uphold its lender requirements
and ensure a well-maintained, affordable and resilient electric distribution system.
If granted, this application will reduce the risk of cost recovery through a
volumetric energy charge that is subject to weather fluctuations and energy
efficiency impacts compared to a more stable monthly customer charge. Founded
on our COSS and the guidelines set forth in the streamlined rate procedure,
Meade County would be eligible for no more than a 2.6 percent increase in its

revenue adjustment to maintain an OTIER not exceeding 1.85. Allowing Meade
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County a revenue adjustment of $1,404,525 will allow the Cooperative to migrate
towards its cost base rate for its residential customer charge while offsetting
inflationary pressures impacting the Cooperative.

PLEASE SUMMARIZE THE PROPOSED SOLUTION TO THE
PROBLEM YOU DESCRIBE.

In order to address Meade County’s current undesirable financial condition, the
Cooperative’s Board of Directors, in conjunction with its management, has
determined that a general adjustment of retail rates is necessary. Therefore, this
application seeks to increase the monthly residential customer charge from $17.16
to $21.09. This equates to a $0.13 per day increase to Meade County’s daily
customer charge, adjusting the fee from $0.572 per day to $0.703 per day. This
modification to Meade County’s customer charge will enable the Cooperative to
achieve no more than a 1.85 OTIER, allowing the organization to avoid risking
default on its loan covenant agreements.

This application proposes a fair, just and reasonable adjustment to the
customer charge that would fall well below the $31.09 actual residential cost-
based rate or $1.022 per day daily charge shown in the COSS.

IS THE PROPOSED SOLUTION A GOOD FIT FOR UTILIZING THE
STREAMLINED RATE STREAMLINED PROCEDURE PILOT
PROGRAM?

Yes. Meade County meets the requirements of the program. There are no
applications for a Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity associated with

this request, nor have any mvestments in plant been made since the Cooperative's
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last rate case or without approval by the Commission or through RUS and CFC.
Meade County’s pro forma test year demonstrates the need for a revenue
adjustment of 2.6 percent pursuant the Streamlined Procedure Pilot Program,
which is clearly under the 4.0 percent maximum cap associated with this process.
While a traditional rate case would certainly require more time, expense and data,
it is unlikely that it would add any material insights to that which can already be
gained from the Application and supporting exhibits filed in this case. The
benefits of utilizing the streamlined rate case procedure will provide cost savings
to our member-owners while reducing labor hours associated with a traditional
rate case. Just as our Cooperative has proudly provided its member-owners value
through the Member Rate Stability Mechanism (“MRSM™) Credit by offsetting
inflationary pressures worth nearly $40 million in bill credits to our six-county
service territory for almost a decade, Meade County considers it very reasonable
to seek rate relief by utilizing the streamline rate case procedure at this time.
SINCE MEADE COUNTY HAS NOT HAD A GENERAL ADJUSTMENT
IN RATES WITHIN THE PAST FIVE YEARS, PLEASE EXPLAIN WHY
IT DID NOT SEEK A RATE INCREASE DURING THAT PERIOD OF
TIME.

Meade County has been able to avoid seeking a rate increase over the last five
years because the Board of Directors and management team have taken steps to

mitigate the need for a rate increase. I describe these steps in further detail next.
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PLEASE DESCRIBE SOME SIGNIFICANT COST-CONTAINMENT
MEASURES THE COOPERATIVE HAS TAKEN TO AVOID OR
MINIMIZE AN INCREASE OF ITS RATES.

Meade County’s Board of Directors and management have put several cost-
containment measures in place in recent years. These include paying careful
attention to and pursuing historically low interest rates when advantageous with
its lenders. The Cooperative has executed low interest, long-term fixed loans to
minimize the refinancing risk associated with variable short-term maturities to
better align the Cooperative’s capital structure with its long-range strategic plans.
While this effort has not greatly lowered the Cooperative’s blended cost of debt, it
will reduce future borrowing costs if interest rates increase in time. Conversely,
over a decade ago, Meade County was proactive at reducing Retirements and
Savings (R&S) costs along with healthcare insurance expenses by migrating
employees to a defined contribution plan and requiring employees to contribute
towards healthcare insurance premium costs. Existing employees hired July 31,
2002 or beyond are no longer eligible for the R&S plan and the post-retirement
insurance coverage, whereas new hires employed after July 31, 2002 can only
participate in a defined contribution plan, hence a 401(k) Program. This freeze on
the traditional pension plan was a long-term cost-saving strategy to lower the
Cooperative’s retirement costs as individuals phase out of the R&S program
throughout time by shifting employees to a more affordable and stable retirement
plan. For example, in 2019, Meade County’s annual R&S costs were $542,088

compared to 401(k) contributions of $391,358 annually, which results in a
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$150,730 lower emplover contribution expense. From the Cooperative’s
perspective, this elimination of the R&S plan to a defined contribution plan
removed the ongoing liability and unpredictability associated with a defined
benefit program revealing our effort to control costs. Additionally, Meade
County employees contribute an average of 19 percent to the overall healthcare
premium expenses offsetting the Cooperative’s total healthcare insurance
expense. Furthermore, within the past couple of years, the Cooperative switched
Medicare age retirees that were enrolled in a grandfathered (only retirees hired
before January 1, 2002 are eligible) insurance plan offered by Kentucky Rural
Electric Cooperatives (“KREC”) to Humana, which lowered the insurance
premium expenses for the Cooperative and the retirees which resulted in a
combined savings of $32,000 per year. This effort to manage “R&S” costs along
with requiring the workforce to pay for a portion of their healthcare premiums has
allowed Meade County to mitigate the revenue adjustment being requested in this
application. As mentioned earlier in my testimony, Meade County has taken
sensible cost control measures to keep distribution operation and maintenance
(“O&M™) expenses low as they represent one of the greatest total costs of electric
service (17.2 percent) for the Cooperative. By holding O&M costs to a meager 6
percent increase over seven years shows the significant attempt by Meade County
to contain expenses while continuing to provide safe, reliable and affordable
electric service. For instance, in the most recent Key Ratio Trend Analysis, which
covered 2018, Meade County’s standing in “Total Controllable Expenses Per

Consumer” was lower than the average ranking recorded by clectric distribution
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cooperatives listed nationally, statewide, by consumer size and by major current
power supplier. This comparison data illustrates the competitiveness of Meade
County in relation to other electric distribution cooperatives in the category of
controllable expenses. In closing, 1 believe Meade County has demonstrated
effective leadership by its Board of Directors and management by administering
effective measures to keep internal costs under control while upholding a resilient
electric service to our member-owners and not harming our ability to attract a
qualified workforce. Despite these significant monetary reduction efforts, the fact
remains that our Cooperative’s existing rate structure is inadequate in terms of
design, as evidenced by the Cost of Service Study provided by Mr. Wolfram and
supports our modest request to migrate towards a more cost-based customer
charge.

PLEASE DESCRIBE MEADE COUNTY’S WORKFORCE AND THE
COMPENSATION POLICIES WITH RESPECT TO EMPLOYEE
BENEFITS.

As of the current date, the Cooperative employs a qualified and highly-skilled
workforce consisting of 73 individuals (68 full time and 5 part time). Meade
County does not have a union, so none of our employees are subject to a
collective bargaining agreement. The Cooperative offers its employees a
competitive compensation package in order to attract and retain a qualified
workforce. This is described in greater detail in the Direct Testimony of Anna

Swanson.
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DID THE COOPERATIVE’S BOARD OF DIRECTORS APPROVE AND
AUTHORIZE THE FILING OF THE APPLICATION IN THIS CASE?

Yes. See Exhibit ML-1. This was the culmination of an ongoing deliberative
process involving expert guidance and extensive examination of the
Cooperative’s financial condition. I believe the Application and supporting
documents filed in this case strongly support the necessary rate relief Meade
County now seeks.

DID MEADE COUNTY GIVE ANY CONSIDERATION TO THE TIMING
OF THE REQUESTED RATE RELIEF DUE TO THE COVID-19
PANDEMIC?

Yes. Meade County’s management and Board have given in-depth and thoughtful
consideration to submitting a Streamlined Rate Case Application following the
impacts of the COVID-19 crisis. Although a difficult decision, in reality, this
application was planned well before the challenges of the COVID-19 pandemic.
Our Board and management team have been preparing for this upcoming
adjustment since our 2017 strategic planning exercise. Our Cooperative has
always been concerned about the impacts of our rates on our member-owners and
even more so during this turbulent time. However, the fact remains that our
Cooperative must ensure we are collecting the appropriate amounts to mitigate the
revenue deficiency impacting our 2019 financials. This objective is even more
critical during today’s challenging conditions, since maintaining reliable power
delivery is imperative for our member-owners to withstand and recover from this

unfortunate event. With respect to the Kentucky Public Service Commission and
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the Kentucky Attorney General’s office, we believe it is in the best interest of all
parties to move forward with this request to avoid upcoming congestion that could
result due to the impacts of this international health event.

WHY SHOULD THE COMMISSION GRANT THE COOPERATIVE’S
REQUESTED RELIEF?

As discussed throughout this filing, the requested relief will provide Meade
County and its member-owners the financial integrity required to adequately
maintain an efficient and reliable electric distribution system at a fair, just and
reasonable cost. The requested 2.6 percent overall revenue adjustment will allow
Meade County to avoid a default in its credit requirements. I believe it is fair to
characterize Meade County's proposal as measured, balanced and prudent,
therefore making the Cooperative an eligible and indeed excellent candidate for
the streamlined rate case procedure. I appreciate the Commission’s consideration
in allowing Meade County and other Kentucky clectric distribution cooperatives
to utilize this reasonable, efficient and cost-effective process to provide a means
to ensure a financially healthy electric distribution cooperative in the
Commonwealth.

DOES THIS CONCLUDE YOUR TESTIMONY?

Yes.
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY

BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

In the Matter of:

THE ELECTRONIC APPLICATION OF )
MEADE COUNTY RURAL ELECTRIC )
COOPERATIVE CORPORATION )
FOR A GENERAL ADJUSTMENT OF ) Case No. 2020-00131
RATES PURSUANT TO STREAMLINED )
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VERIFICATION OF MARTIN LITTREL

COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY )

R

COUNTY OF MEADE

Martin W. Littrel, being duly sworn, states that he has supervised the preparation of his
Direct Testimony in the above-referenced case and that the matters and things set forth therein
are true and accurate to the best of his knowledge, information and belief, formed after

reasonable inquiry.
Mart(n W. Littrel

The foregoing Verification was signed, acknowledged and sworn to before me this 2 ¥

day of May, 2020, by Martin W Littrel.
N

Notary Commission No. 5 < D ng q 9

Commission expiration: 4 ~12-22_




Exhibit ML-1

Board of Directors

Authorization Support



P.O. Box 489
Brandenburg, KY 40108-0489
270-422-2162

Mead_e C ount C C Fax: 270-422-4705

EXCERPT FROM MINUTES DATED MARCH 18, 2020
MOTION AUTHORIZING THE FILING OF RATE INCREASE

Rate Increase Filing. John Wolfram Presentation. John Wolfram presented results of the cost of

service and rate study performed for Meade County RECC using the cooperative’s 2019 financial and
consumption data. Mr. Wolfram recommended the cooperative to request for a rate increase to be
determined but not to exceed 3.40% to the residential customer charge, none of which exceeds the
applicable caps required by the Kentucky Public Service Commission. Mr. Wolfram answered questions
and discussed how the different rate percentages would affect the cooperative’s margins. Upon motion
made by Stephen Barr, seconded by Paul Edd Butler, the Board authorized the President/CEO and Board
attorney to analyze the rate increase when all the information becomes available and file for the
appropriate increase, which shall not exceed the recommended 3.40% increase to the residential customer

charge with the Kentucky Public Service Commission.

CERTIFICATION OF SECRETARY

I, Darla Sipes, certify that I am the Secretary of the Meade County Rural Electric Cooperative
Corporation Board of Directors and that the above and foregoing is a true excerpt from the minutes of a
regular board meeting of the Board of Directors of Meade County Rural Electric Cooperative

Corporation held on the 18" day of March, 2020 at which meeting a quorum was present.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, [ have set my hand and affixed the seal of Meade County Rural Electric
Cooperative Corporation this 29" day of May, 2020.

Darla Sipes, Secretary

A Touchstone Energy® Cooperative 7(#‘

Meade County RECC is an equal opportunity provider and employer



Meade County Rural Electric Cooperative Corporation
Case No. 2020-00131
Streamlined Rate Adjustment Procedure Pilot Program
Filing Requirements / Exhibit List

Exhibit 8

807 KAR 5:001 Sec. 16(4)(b)
Sponsoring Witness: Anna Swanson

Description of Iiling Requirement:

If the utility has gross annual revenues greater than $3,000,000, the written testimony of
each witness the utility proposes to use to support its application.

Response:

In support of its Application, Meade County provides written testimony from three (3)

withesses:

e Mr. Martin Littrel, Meade County’s President and Chief Executive Officer, whose
testimony is included at Exhibit 7;

e Ms. Anna Swanson, Meade County’s Vice President of Accounting and Finance, whose
testimony is included with this Exhibit 8; and

e Mr. John Wolfram, expert consultant with Catalyst Consulting LLLC, whose testimony is

included at Exhibit 9.

Case No. 2020-00131
Application - Exhibit 8
Includes Attachment (36 pages)
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PLEASE STATE YOUR NAME, POSITION, AND BUSINESS ADDRESS.
My name is Anna Swanson and I serve as Vice President of Accounting &
Finance for Meade County Rural Electric Cooperative Corporation (“Meade
County” or the “Cooperative”™). My business address is 1351 Highway 79,
Brandenburg, Kentucky 40108.

PLEASE BRIEFLY DESCRIBE YOUR EDUCATION AND
PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE.

[ have a Bachelor of Science Degree in Accounting from Brescia College in
Owensboro, Kentucky. I have been employed by Meade County for 17 years. 1
was hired in May 2003 as an accountant, was promoted to accounting supervisor
in April 2006, and assumed my current position of Vice President of Accounting
and Finance managing the accounting, billing and finance department in July
2015.

PLEASE BRIEFLY DESCRIBE YOUR DUTIES AT THE
COOPERATIVE.

In my role as Vice President of Accounting and Finance at Meade County, I am
responsible for all billing, finance, accounting and regulatory activities for the
Cooperative. 1 oversee the day-to-day accounting functions including the
preparation of the financial and accounting reports, payroll, accounts payable and
distribution plant. I also prepare the budget and manage Meade County’s debt
portfolio through regular communication with representatives of our lenders,
including Rural Utilities Service (“RUS™), Cooperative Finance Corporation

(“CFC”) and Federal Financing Bank (“FFB™).
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WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF YOUR TESTIMONY IN THIS
PROCEEDING?

The purpose of my testimony is first to provide a general overview of the
Cooperative’s financial health. T will discuss notable financial metrics and detail
certain expense categories, as well as describe the Cooperative’s debt portfolio,
depreciation practices, labor expenses, and various other relevant matters.
Finally, I will summarize and underscore the necessity of the rate relief requested
by Meade County in this processing.

ARE YOU SPONSORING ANY EXHIBITS?

Yes. Attached to my testimony is Exhibit AS-1, a detailed summary of Meade
County’s relevant historical metrics, and Exhibit AS-2, a copy of Meade County’s
October 2019 Audited Financial Statements.

ARE YOU FAMILIAR WITH THE APPLICATION AND SUPPORTING
EXHIBITS FILED BY MEADE COUNTY IN THIS CASE?

Yes, I am familiar with the documents filed in support of the Application and
have been closely involved in compiling and analyzing the necessary information
with Meade County’s expert consultant, Mr. John Wolfram of Catalyst Consulting
LLC, so that he could complete his Cost of Service Study (“COSS™). Examples
of the types of information I have reviewed and provided to Mr. Wolfram
included income and expense data for the test year, customer usage data for
Meade County’s several rate classes, and various categories of information

utilized to prepare all pro forma adjustments and COSS reports and exhibits.
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PLEASE GENERALLY DESCRIBE THE RELIEF SOUGHT BY MEADE
COUNTY IN THIS PROCEEDING.

Meade County is requesting to revise its rates in order to earn an additional
$1,404,525 annually. This proposed rate increase is then allocated to adjust the
customer charge for our Residential customer class from $0.572 to $0.703 per
day. Meade County is not proposing to change the Residential energy charge, nor
1s it proposing any changes to the rates of any other customer classes.

WHY IS MEADE COUNTY REQUESTING THIS ALLOCATION OF THE
REVENUE REQUIREMENT?

Fundamentally, Meade County requests approval to adjust the rates for service
paid by its residential customers in order to more accurately reflect the cost to the
Cooperative to serve those customers. As further evidenced by Mr. Wolfram’s
testimony, Members served under our Residential rates have a negative rate of
return on rate base.

IS THE COOPERATIVE’S APPLICATION SUPPORTED BY A
HISTORICAL TEST YEAR?

Yes. the test year in this case consists of the twelve (12) month period ending
December 31, 2019.

WHY WAS THE PERIOD OF JANUARY 1, 2019 THROUGH
DECEMBER 31, 2019 CHOSEN AS THE HISTORICAL TEST YEAR?
Calendar Year 2019 was chosen as the relevant historical test year for a couple
reasons. First, the Commission’s Orders entered December 11, 2018, March 26,

2019 and December 20, 2019 in Case No. 2018-00407 require that any
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proceeding filed pursuant to the Streamlined Procedure Pilot Program “may only
be based on a historical test year that corresponds with the [cooperative’s] most

»1 Additionally, Meade County

recent annual report on file with the Commission.
chose Calendar Year 2019 as its proposed test year because that period reasonably
reflects the most recent performance of the Cooperative, when adjusted for
appropriate known and measurable changes, as contemplated by relevant law and
precedent.

PLEASE GENERALLY DESCRIBE THE LOAD SERVED BY THE
COOPERATIVE.

The Cooperative serves a retail load of approximately 125 MW, based upon
coincident peak during 2019, in its six (6) county service territory, which includes
all or portions of Breckinridge, Grayson, Hancock, Hardin, Meade and Ohio
Counties. The Cooperative’s customer base 1s primarily residential served under
Schedule 1 - Residential. As of the end of the test year, the residential load
comprised approximately 76 percent of the Cooperative’s total energy usage and
represented approximately 76 percent of the Cooperative’s total revenue from
energy sales. The Cooperative also serves a smaller number of commercial and
large power customer loads. A detailed discussion of Meade County’s various
rate classes, including an examination of the costs and revenues associated with
each, is included in the testimony of Mr. John Wolfram, Exhibit 9 to the
Application.

PLEASE GENERALLY DESCRIBE ANY NOTABLE TRENDS IN THE

COOPERATIVE’S REVENUES AND MARGINS IN RECENT YEARS.

! See Order, Case No. 2018-00407, Appendix A, p. 3 (Ky. P.S.C. Dec. 20, 2019).

5
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A detailed summary of certain relevant financial metrics is provided at Exhibit
AS-1to my testimony. As evidenced by this data, TIER and OTIER have been at
lower levels in recent years as a result of lower margins and a lack of load growth,
which have both continued to decline since 2013.

HAVE MEADE COUNTY’S OPERATIONAL EXPENSES INCREASED IN
RECENT YEARS?

Yes. The Cooperative’s last general rate increase from a full retail rate case went
into effect in 2013 following the Commission’s approval of same in Case No.
2013-00333. Since that time, the cost of doing business and providing safe,
reliable electric service has significantly increased. Meade County has worked at
keeping expenses flat for the last several years but has still experienced increases
in depreciation expense, labor expense, material and contractor costs.

PLEASE DESCRIBE THE COOPERATIVE’S EXISTING DEBT
PORTFOLIO.

Meade County is currently a borrower from RUS, CFC and FFB. As of
December 31, 2019, the outstanding principal balance on Meade County’s long-
term debt is $72 million. Also, 100 percent of Meade County’s long-term debt is
at fixed interest rates with a blended rate of 2.93 percent. Meade County has a $5
million line of credit with CFC for short-term borrowing needs.

WHAT EFFORTS HAS THE COOPERATIVE TAKEN TO REDUCE ITS
INTEREST EXPENSE?

Meade County has taken advantage of the opportunity to lock in low interest rates

for long term versus having variable rates. Meade County believes having a
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portfolio of fixed interest rates avoids the financial risk of variable rates in an
uncertain market and gives Meade County a better tool for budgeting purposes.
Meade County also has been in contact with its lenders to see if refinancing would
have any savings. A detailed account of Meade County’s current debt portfolio is
provided in the October 2019 Audited Financial Statements attached hereto as
Exhibit AS-2.

DOES THE COOPERATIVE PROPOSE TO ADJUST ITS
DEPRECIATION RATES AS PART OF THIS PROCEEDING?

Meade County does not propose to adjust its depreciation rates as part of this
proceeding. Meade County’s last depreciation study was completed in 2015 and
received by the Commission in November 2015, Those existing depreciation
rates were effective January 1, 2016.  Additionally, as demonstrated within the
testimony sponsored by Mr. Wolfram (and specifically at Exhibit JW-2,
Reference Schedule 1.07), Meade County continues to depreciate its assets at
reasonable, industry-standard rates. Meade County’s depreciation and reserve are
reviewed at least annually as part of the Cooperative’s annual audit, and the
Cooperative is in compliance with the guideline range acceptable to RUS and
typically emploved by distribution cooperatives like Meade County.

WHEN DID THE COOPERATIVE LAST RETIRE CAPITAL CREDITS
OF ITS MEMBERS?

Meade County last made a general retirement of capital credits in 2016 reflecting

capital credits earned during the period of 1992-1993 and totaling $1,213,678.
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PLEASE GENERALLY DESCRIBE THE COOPERATIVE’S
WORKFORCE.

As of the current date, the Cooperative employs a qualified and highly-skilled
workforce consisting of 73 individuals (68 full time and 5 part time). Meade
County does not have a union, so none of our employees are subject to a
collective bargaining agreement.

PLEASE PROVIDE ADDITIONAL DETAIL WITH RESPECT TO THE
COOPERATIVE’S LABOR EXPENSES, INCLUDING THE BENEFITS
OFFERED TO EMPLOYEES.

The Cooperative offers its employees a competitive compensation package in
order to attract and retain a qualified workforce. Meade County offers emplovees
health care, dental, vision, life insurance, long-term disability, and a retirement
plan. Meade County employees contribute 50 percent for dependent health care
premium costs, 100 percent for dental dependent coverage, and 50 percent for any
type of vision coverage. Meade County employees hired prior to July 31, 2002
participate in the NRECA retirement security plan and receive a 3 percent
contribution to their 401(k). Employees hired August 1, 2002 and after receive a
12 percent contribution to their 401(k), but do not participate in the NRECA
retirement security plan. Meade County will share the premium cost of retiree
insurance for employees hired prior to January 1, 2002. Meade County will
contribute 50 percent of the premium for single coverage for retired emplovees
with 20 or more vears of service, 33 1/3 percent for retired employees with 15-20

years of service, and 25 percent for retired employees with 10-15 years of service.
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Employees hired after January 1, 2002 will not receive any contributions for
health care premiums after the Medicare eligibility age is met.

HAS THE COOPERATIVE TAKEN ANY STEPS IN RECENT YEARS TO
READJUST HOW MUCH EMPLOYEES CONTRIBUTE TOWARDS ANY
EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS THEY RECEIVE?

Yes. To realize the large savings for the Cooperative for health insurance expense
employees were required to pay more in out-of-pocket costs. Employee
deductibles, co-pays and prescription co-pays were increased. In addition, the
KREC medical plan is a 90/10 plan which requires employees to pay 10 percent
of medical costs up to a maximum. Since 2015, employees have been required to
pay 50 percent of their dependent medical coverage.

HOW DOES THE COOPERATIVE DETERMINE WHETHER AND
WHEN WAGE INCREASES SHOULD BE AWARDED TO EMPLOYEES?
Meade County’s salary scale was developed with the aid of a third-party
consultant. The consultant surveys the market and updates the salary scale every
few years. The vears the salary scale 1s not updated by the third-party consultant,
Meade County looks at a number of factors to determine wage increases. Meade
County takes into consideration the inflation rate, the national and Ky COLA
(cost of living adjustment), and an average of what type of increase we have
determined in previous years. Wage increases are determined on an annual basis
based on employee evaluations and individual employee performance. Employee
salaries are limited to the maximum salary of the scale. Because ranges for

employee wages at Meade County have been developed and are updated in
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consultation with third-party experts, the Cooperative is confident its evaluation
and compensation standards have resulted in a fairly-paid, but not overpaid, and
fully-competent workforce.

HAS THE COOPERATIVE TAKEN ACTIONS TO LIMIT OR REDUCE
ITS LABOR EXPENSES?

Yes.  As discussed above, employees contribute to their healthcare costs. In
addition, Mr. Littrel describes several cost savings actions that we have
undertaken in recent years to achieve savings in our R&S Plan and to manage
Meade County’s employee count.

WHY IS IT IMPORTANT THAT THE COOPERATIVE MAINTAIN A
STRONG FINANCIAL CONDITION?

As the Commission is aware, Meade County is owned by the Members it serves.
While it is always our goal to keep rates as low as possible, the expense of
providing safe and reliable service must be recovered; additionally, prudent
management and fairmess demand that rates be designed in a way that better
aligns cost-causers with cost-payers, which is what Meade County’s proposed
rates seek to accomplish. Meade County has taken seriously the Commission’s
comments in several recent distribution cooperative rate cases that it looks with
disfavor on companies that wait until a financial emergency exists, such as a
default notice from its lenders, before secking rate relief. In this case, Meade
County asks the Commission to approve a modest rate increase in order to bolster

its overall financial condition to prevent just such an emergency from developing.
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PLEASE DESCRIBE THE REVISED RATES PROPOSED BY THE
COOPERATIVE FOR ITS RESIDENTIAL CUSTOMERS.

Meade County is proposing to adjust the monthly customer charge from $0.572 to
$0.703 per day, with no change to the energy charge per kWh. This will result in
an increase of $4.22 or 3.52 percent on the monthly bill for Meade County’s
average residential member-owner. This is discussed in further detail in the
Direct Testimony of Mr. John Wolfram.

DID THE COOPERATIVE CONSIDER ITS LOW-INCOME
CUSTOMERS WHEN DESIGNING ITS PROPOSED RATES?

Yes. While Meade County’s responsibility is to its membership as a whole, the
Cooperative certainly considered how its proposed rates and rate design may
impact various discrete groups within its membership, including low-income
customers. Meade County maintains that low-income customers usually have
higher kWh usage than other residential customers. The proposed rate change will
result in a 3.52 percent or $4.22 per month increase. Meade County feels this is a
minor increase after a seven-year period. Ultimately, Meade County concluded
that its rate design should seek to more accurately and appropriately recover the
costs of operating its distribution system; as a result, all customers, including low-
income customers, will benefit from a rate design that better aligns cost-causers
with cost-payers, avoids monthly bill volatility, and allows the Cooperative to

operate under a more predictable and accurate budget.

11
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OTHER THAN ADJUSTMENTS TO RATES, DOES THE
COOPERATIVE PROPOSE ANY OTHER TARIFF CHANGES AS PART
OF THIS PROCEEDING?

No. Consistent with the Commission’s guidance for streamlined rate case
proceedings, Meade County does not include any requests to change its tariff
beyond that necessary to reflect changes in rates.

ARE ADJUSTMENTS NECESSARY TO ENSURE THE TEST YEAR
ACCURATELY REFLECTS THE COOPERATIVE’'S INCOME AND
EXPENSES?

Yes. These adjustments are part of the COSS and can be found in the Direct
Testimony of Mr. John Wolfram Exhibit 9 to the Application. All of the
adjustments proposed by Meade County are reasonable, reflect known and
measurable changes to the test year, and are necessary to ensure that the
Cooperative’s rates are based on accurate and appropriate data. Moreover, the pro
forma adjustments made to the test year are entirely consistent with the
Commission’s directives in its Orders entered in Case No. 2018-00407
concerning items that must be excluded from cooperative revenue requirements in
a Streamlined Proceeding.

WHY SHOULD THE COMMISSION GRANT MEADE COUNTY’S
REQUESTED RELIEF?

As discussed throughout this filing, the rate relief sought by Meade County in this
case 1s critical to ensure that its financial integrity is maintained in order to

provide its member-owners with reliable power at a recasonable cost. The

12
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requested rate adjustment has been specifically designed to account for Meade
County’s cost of service to the various customer classes it serves. As the COSS
indicates, the requested increase does not fully resolve the mismatch, however,
the rate relief sought does support Meade County’s philosophy of moving towards
appropriate cost recovery in a gradual fashion. Meade County’s request in this
case is reasonable, necessary and supported by sound cost of service analyses.
This case presents an excellent opportunity for the Commission to apply the
streamlined rate case procedure.

DOES THIS CONCLUDE YOUR TESTIMONY?

Yes.

13
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Direct Testimony in the above-referenced case and that the matters and things set forth therein
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MEADE COUNTY RECC

EXHIBIT AS-1

HISTORICAL METRICS

2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019

% Change in

Interest on Net Operating Equity to Residential Residential

LTD Margins Margins TIER OTIER Assets DSC kWh Sales kWh Sales
1,849,538 1,900,024 | 1,477,328 2.03 1.80 32.13% 1.46| 364,681,522 5.3%
1,652,979 1,878,113 | 1,413,260 2.14 1.85 33.83% 2.08] 368,919,577 1.2%
1,605,992 1,747,237 | 1,257,314 2.09 1.78 32.93% 1.96] 348,157,269 -5.6%
1,683,371 1,775,231 | 1,378,549 2.05 1.82 32.30% 2.00] 352,360,441 1.2%
1,674,850 1,509,167 | 1,224,187 1.90 1.73 33.64% 1.96| 328,041,671 -6.9%
2,090,123 1,751,326 | 1,120,003 1.84 1.54 30.82% 1.83] 359,192,314 9.5%
2,127,309 491,205 (49,160) 1.23 0.98 30.52% 1.51] 342,644,970 -4.6%
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Meade County Rural Electric Cooperative Corporation
Brandenburg, Kentucky

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Meade County Rural Electric Cooperative
Corporation, which comprise the balance sheet as of October 31, 2019, and the related statements of
revenue and comprehensive income, changes in members” equities, and cash flows for the year then ended,
and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of' accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

=]
Certified Public Accountants and Advisors
642 South Fourth Street, Suite 300 Louisville, Kentucky 40202 tel: 502.583.0248 fax: 502.589-1680 www jnmcpa.com



Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Meade County Rural Electric Cooperative Corporation as of October 31, 2019, and the results
of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also 1ssued a report dated January 17, 2020,
on our consideration of Meade County Rural Electric Cooperative Corporation’s internal control over
financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide
an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part
of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering internal control
over financial reporting and compliance.

The tinancial statements of Meade County Rural Electric Cooperative Corporation, as of and for the year

ended October 31, 2018 were audited by other auditors whose report dated December 12, 2018 expressed
an unmodified opinion on those statements.

8-aw, Vele + W ,mﬁ Pee

Louisville, Kentucky
January 17. 2020

Jongs, DNale @ Mattmgly FLIC



MEADE COUNTY RURAL ELECTRIC
COOPERATIVE CORPORATION
BALANCE SHEETS
October 31, 2019 and 2018

Assets

Electric plant, at original cost:

In service

Under construction

Less accumulated depreciation

Investments in associated organizations

Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts recervable, less allowance for

2019

of $86,173 and 201 8 of $122,023

Unbilled revenues

(Other receivables

Material and supplies, at average cost

Other current assets

Prepaid retirement costs

Total

Members' Equities and [iabilities

Members' Equities:
Memberships
Patronage capital
Other equities
Accumulated other comprehensive income

Long-Term Debt, less current portion

Accumulated Postretirement Benefits

Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable

Current portion of long-term debt
Consumer deposits

Accrued expenses

Total current habilibies

Consumer Advances

Total

2019

2018

$ 127,374,401

$ 124,888,518

1,921,033 180,253
129,295,434 125,068,771
44,897,152 42,154,565
84,398,282 82,914,206
2,275,751 2,257,988
23,054,778 21,199,311
4,278,011 4,696,178
540,383 632,819
138,415 192,412
726,342 627,080
305,829 316,186
29,043,758 27,663,986
635.090 800,766

$ 116,352 881

$ 113,636,946

3 67,175 $ 69,985
33.967.436 33,719,137
1,358,749 1.294,656
383,981 365,696
35,777,341 35,449,474
69,458,765 68,120,760
1,235,946 1,226,329
3,328,579 3,594,948
2,692,000 2,400,000
1,462,420 1,166,174
1,827,233 1,133,830
9,310,232 8,204,952
570,597 545,431

$ 116,352,881

$ 113,636,946

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

i
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MEADE COUNTY RURAL ELECTRIC
COOPERATIVE CORFPORATION

STATEMENTS OF REVENUE AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended October 31, 2019 and 2018

Operating Revenues
Sale of electric energy
Other clectric revenues

Operating Expenses:
Cost of power
Distribution - operations
Distribution - maintenance
Consumer accounts
Customer services
Administrative and general
Depreciation, excluding $343,352 in 2019 and
$369.161 1n 2018 charged to clearing accounts
Taxes, other than income
Interest on long-term debt
Interest expense - other

Other deductions

Total cost of electric service
Operating margins (deficits)

Nonoperating Margins
Interest income
Others

Patronage Capital Credits

Net Margins

Other Comprehensive Income:
Postretirement benefits

Net Margins and Comprehensive Income

2019

2018

$ 54,646,610

$ 57,501,638

1,341,741 1,431,370
55,088 351 58,033,008
39,434,431 41,461,478

2,897,799 2,910,222

3,540,135 3,166,554

1,681,036 1,650,761

265,146 291,878
1,621,056 1,642,502
4,369,877 4.278.955

71,600 67,506
2,132,541 2,008.445
29.006 13.903
14,108 15,151
56,056,735 57.507.355
(68.,384) 1,425,653
513,785 448,941
12,069 38,445
525.854 487,386
58,046 81,049
515,516 1,994,088
18,285 462,177

$ 533801 $ 2,456,265

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

il
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MEADE COUNTY RURAL ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE CORPORATION
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN MEMBERS' EQUITIES

Years Ended October 31, 2019 and 2018

Accumulated Total
Patronage Capital Other Comprehensive Members'
Memberships Asgsigned Assignable Unasgigned Retirements Total Equities Income (L ogs) Equities
Balance - October 31, 2017 3 73,184 % 41,828,173 $ 873,933 $ 6,329,310 $ (16,755,127) § 32,276,289 § 1,294,353 % (96,481) $§ 33.547,345
Allocate margins 1,413,261 (1,878,114) 464.853 22 2a
Comprehensive income:
Net marging 1,994,088 1,994,088 1,994,088
Postretitement benefit obligation
Amortization 15,358
Adjustments 446,819 462,177
Total comprehensive income 2,456,265
Net change in memberships (3,199) (3.199)
Refunds of capital credits (551,240) (551,240) (551,240)
Other equities 303 303
Balarice - October 31, 2018 69,985 43,241,434 989,907 6,794,163 {17,306,367) 33,719,137 1,294,656 365,694 35,449,474
Allocate margins 1,413,261 (1,878,114 464,853 -- --
Comprehensive income:
Net margins 515,518 515,516 515,516
Postretirement benefit obligation
Amortization 18,285
Adjustments -- 18,285
Total comprehensive income 533,501
Net change in memberships (2,810) (2,810)
Refunds of capital credits (267,217) (267,217) {267.217)
Other equities 64,093 64,093
Balance - October 31, 2019 3 67,175 § 44,654,695 § (372,691) § 7,259,016 $ (17,573,584) § 33967436 % 1.358,749 § 383,981 § 35777341

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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MEADE COUNTY RURAL ELECTRIC

COOPERATIVE CORPORATION
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended October 31, 2019 and 2018

2019 2018
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net margins b 515,516 $ 1,994,088
Adjustments to recencile net marging to net cash provided
by operating activities:
Depreciation:
Charged to expense 4,369,877 4,278,955
Charged to clearing accounts 343,352 369,161
Patronage capital credits assigned (58.046) (81,049
Accumulated postretirement benefits 27.902 635,267
Change in assets and liabilities:
Receivables 564,600 (352,273)
Material and supplies (99,262) 21,170
Other assets 10,357 (49.319)
Deferred assets 165,676 165,676
Payables (266,369) 261,108
Consumer deposits and advances 321,412 170,321
Accrued expenses 693,403 110,174
Net cash provided by operating activities 6,588,418 6,953,279
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Plant additions (5,680,323) (3,908,857)
Plant remaval costs (557,118) (536,935)
Salvage recovered from retired plant 40,136 44914
Receipts from other investments, net 40,283 30,955
Net cash (used n) investing activities (6,157,022) (4,369,923)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net change in memberships (2,810) (3,199)
Refund of patronage capital to members (267,217) (551,240)
Increase in other equities 64,093 303
Payments on long-term debt (2,590,306) (2,314,311)
Advances on long-term debt E 18,049,000
Net cushion of credit (advances) applied 4,220,311 (2,289,402)
Net cash provided by financing activities 1,424,071 12,891,151
Net increase in cash and cash equivelants 1,855,467 15,474,507
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of vear 21,199,311 5,724,804

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 23,054,778 $ 21,199311

SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Interest paid on long-term debt $ 2,163,985 $ 1969664

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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MEADE COUNTY RURAL ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE CORPORATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Meade County Rural Electric Cooperative Corporation (“Meade County™) mamtamns its records in
accordance with the policies prescribed or permitted by the Kentucky Public Service Commission (“PSC”)
and the United States Department of Agriculture, Rural Utilities Service (“RUS™), which conform in all
material respects with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The more
significant of these policies are as follows:

Electric Plant Electric plant is stated at original cost, which is the cost when first dedicated to public
service. Such amount includes applicable supervisory and overhead cost including any construction period
interest and taxes. There was no interest required to be capitalized during the year.

The cost of maintenance and repairs, including renewals of minor items of property, is charged to operating
expense. The cost of replacement of depreciable property units, as distinguished from minor items, is
charged to electric plant. The units of property replaced or retired, including cost of removal. net of any
salvage value, is charged to accumulated depreciation. Electric plant consists of:

2019 2018
Distribution plant 118,158,511 $115.800,298
General plant 9,215,890 9,088,220
Total $127.374.401 $124.888,518

Depreciation Provision has been made for depreciation on the basis of the estimated lives of assets, using
the straight-line method. Depreciation rates range from 2.2% to 6.67% for distribution plant. General plant
rates are as follows:

Structures and mprovements 2.5% - 3%
Transportation equipment 12.5 - 25%
Other general plant items 5% - 14.3%

Cash and Cash Equivalents Meade County considers all short-term, highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents. Meade County maintains its cash balances,
which may exceed the federally insured limit, with several financial institutions, These financial institutions
have strong credit ratings and management believes that credit risk related to the accounts is minimal.

Estimates The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date
of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates used in the preparation of the financial statements.

Revenue Meade County records revenue as billed to its consumers based on monthly meter-reading cycles.
All consumers are required to pay a refundable deposit, however, it may be waived under certain
circumstances. Meade County’s sales are concentrated in a six county area of western Kentucky. There were
no consumers whose individual account balance exceeded 10% of outstanding accounts receivable at
October 31, 2019 or 2018. Consumers must pay their bill within 20 days of billing, then are subject to
disconnect after another 10 days. Accounts arc written off when they are deemed to be uncollectible. The
allowance for uncollectible accounts is based on the aging of receivables.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Sales Tax Meade County is required to collect, on behalf of the State of Kentucky, sales taxes based on 6
percent of gross sales from non-residential consumers, a 3 percent school tax from certain counties on most
gross sales, and franchise fees in certain cities. Meade County’s policy is to exclude sales tax from revenue
when collected and expenses when paid and instead, record collection and payment of sales taxes through a
liability account.

Cost of Power Meade County is ong of three (3) members of Big Rivers Electric Corporation, Inc. (“Big
Rivers™). Under a wholesale power agreement, Meade County is committed to purchase its electric power
and energy requirements from Big Rivers until 2043. The rates charged by Big Rivers are subject to approval
of the PSC. The cost of purchased power is recorded monthly during the period in which the energy is
consumed, based upon billings from Big Rivers.

Fair Value Measurements FASB ASC 820, Fuir Value Measuremenis and Disclosures, requires that
Meade County to disclose estimated fair values of its financial instruments. Fair value estimates, methods,
and assumptions are set forth below for Meade County’s financial instruments.

The carrying amounts of Meade County’s cash and cash equivalents, receivables, inventories, accounts
payable, and accrued expenses and liabilities approximate fair value due to their short maturity. Investments
in associated organizations are not considered a financial instrument because they represent nontransferable
interests in associated organizations. Other assets are not considered financial instruments because they
represent activities specifically related to Meade County. Long term debt cannot be traded in the market, and
is specifically for electric cooperatives and a value other than its outstanding principal cannot be determined.

Meade County may, and also does, invest idle funds in local banks. These investments are clagsified as held-
to-maturity in accordance with provisions of the Financial Instruments Topic of FASB ASC 320. Held-to-
maturity securities are presented at amortized cost. The fair value of held-to-maturity securities
approximates cost at 2019 and 2018,

Risk Management Meade County is exposed to various forms of losses of assets associated with, but not
limited to, fire, personal liability, theft, vehicular accidents, errors and omissions, fiduciary responsibility,
workers compensation, ete. Each of these arcas 1s covered through the purchase of commercial insurance.

Environmental Contingency Meade County from time to time is required to work with and handle PCBs,
herbicides, automotive fluids, lubricants, and other hazardous materials in the normal course of business. As
a result, there is the possibility that environmental conditions may arise which would require Meade County
to incur cleanup costs. The likelihood of such an event, or the amount of such costs, if any, cannot be
determined at this time. However, management does not believe such costs, if any, would materially affect
Meade County’s financial position or its future cash tlows.

Generation and Transmission Corporation As discussed in the preceding notes, Meade County
purchases electric power from Big Rivers. a generation and transmission cooperative association. The
membership of Big Rivers is comprised of Meade County and two other distribution cooperatives.

Meade County has elected to value the non-cash allocations received from Big Rivers at zero for financial
statement purposes, a practice it has followed since Big Rivers emerged from bankruptey in 1998 during
which all previous booked non-cash allocations were reduced to zero. Meade County will continue to make
memorandum entries in its patronage subsidiary ledger of the face amount of the allocations received from
Big Rivers. Refer to the subsequent footnote for the income tax treatment of these non-cash allocations.

-
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Advertising Meade County expenses advertising costs as incurred.

Income Tax Status Meade County is exempt from federal and state income taxes under provisions of
Section 501(c)(12). When applying the 85 percent test of IRC 501(c)(12), Meade County excludes the Big
Rivers non-cash allocations from “gross income™. Accordingly, the financial statements for Meade County
include no provision for income taxes. Meade County’s accounting policy provides that a tax expense/benefit
from an uncertain tax position may be recognized when it is more likely than not that the position will be
sustained upon examination, including resolutions of any related appeals or litigation processes, based on
the technical merits. Management belicves Meade County has no uncertain tax positions resulting in an
accrual of tax expense or benefit. Meade County recognizes interest accrued related to unrecognized tax
benefits in interest expense and penalties in operating expenses. Meade County did not recognize any interest
or penalties during the years ended October 31, 2019 and 2018. Meade County’s income tax return is subject
to possible examination by taxing authorities until the expiration of related statues of limitations on the
return, which is generally three vears.

Comprehensive Income Comprehensive income includes both net margin and other comprehensive
income. Other comprehensive income represents the change in funded status of the accumulated
postretirement benefit obligation.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09, Revenue from
Contracts with Customers. The standard’s core principle is that a company will recognize revenue when it
transfers promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. This standard also includes expanded
disclosure requirements that result in an entity providing users of financial statements with comprehensive
information about the nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from the
entity’s contracts with customers. This standard will be effective for the year ending October 31, 2020.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases. The standard requires all leases with lease terms
over 12 months to be capitalized as a right-of-use asset and lease liability on the balance sheet at the date of
lease commencement. Leases will be classified as either finance or operating. This distinction will be
relevant for the pattern of expense recognition in the statement of income and comprehensive income. This
standard will be effective for the year ending October 31, 2022,

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments-Credit Losses. The standard requires
a financial asset (including trade receivables) measured at amortized cost basis to be presented at the net
amount expected to be collected. Thus, the statement of revenue and comprehensive income will reflect the
measurement of credit losses for newly recognized financial assets as well as the expected inereases or
decreases of expected credit losses that have taken place during the period. This standard will be effective

for the year ending October 31, 2024.

Meade County 1s currently m the process of evaluating the impact of the adoption of these ASUs on the
financial statements.

Subsequent Events Management has evaluated subsequent events through January 17, 2020, the date the
financial statements were available to be issued.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note 2. Investments in Associated Organizations

Investments in associated organizations consist of:

2019 2018
CFC, patronage capital $ 386,366 $ 391,455
CFRC, CTC's 866,393 869,142
Others 1,022,990 997.391
Total $ 2275751 § 2257988

Meade County records patronage capital assigned by associated organizations in the year in which such
assignments are received.

The Capital Term Certificates (“CTCs”) of CFC are recorded at cost. The CTCs were purchased from CFC
as a condition of obtaining long-term financing. The CTCs bear interest at 0%, 3%, and 5% and are scheduled
to mature at varying times from 2022 to 2080.

Note 3. Patronage Capital

Under provisions of the long-term debt agreement, return to patrons of capital contributed by them is limited
to amounts which would not allow the total equitics and margins to be less than 30% of total assets, except
that distributions may be made to estates of deceased patrons. The debt agreement provides, however, that
should such distributions to estates not exceed 25% of the net margins for the next preceding year, Meade
County may distribute the difference between 25% and the payments made to such estates. The equity at
October 31, 2019 and 2018 was 31% of total assets.

Note4. Long-Term Debt

All assets, except vehicles, are pledged as collateral on the long-term debt to RUS, Federal Financing Bank
(“FFB™), and CFC under a joint mortgage agreement. The long-term debt is due in quarterly and monthly
installments of varying amounts through 2053. RUS assess 12.5 basis points to administer the FFB loans.
Long-term debt consists of:

2019 2018

RUS:
1.750% to 4.860% $ 26731952 $ 27,756,590
Advance payments unapphed (1.011.096) (5,231,408)
25,720,856 22,525,182
FFB, 1.014% and 6.049% 44,105,163 45,424,830
CFC., 3.45% to 3.85% fixed rate 2,324,746 2,570,748
72,150,765 70,520,760
Less current portion 2,692,000 2,400,000
Long-term portion $ 69458,765 5 68,120,760

As of October 31, 2019, the annual principal portion of long term debt outstanding for the next five years
are as follows: 2020 - $2,692,000; 2021 - $2,800.000; 2022 - $2,912,000; 2023 - $3,030,000; 2024 -
$3,153,000.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note 5. Short-Term Borrowings

As of October 31, 2019, Meade County has a short-term line of credit of $5,000,000 available from CFC.
There were no advances against this line of credit as of October 31, 2019 and 2018. The maturity of the letter
of credit coincides with the maturity of the long-term debt (see Note 4).

Note 6. Pension Plan

All eligible employees of Meade County participate in the NRECA Retirement and Security Plan (“R&S
Plan™), a defined benefit pension plan qualified under section 401 and tax exempt under section 501(a) of
the Internal Revenue Code. It 1s a multiemployer plan under the accounting standards. The Plan sponsor’s
identification number is 53-0116145 and the Plan Number is 333. Eligible employees include employees
hired prior to August 31, 2002. Non-cligible employees are those hired after August 31, 2002. A unique
characteristic of a multiemplover plan compared to a single employer plan is that all plan assets are available
to pay benefits of any plan participant. Separate asset accounts are not maintained for participating
employers. This means that assets contributed by one employer may be used to provide benefits to employees
of other participating employers.

Meade County’s contributions to the R&S Plan in 2019 and 2018 represent less than 5 percent of the total
contributions made to the plan by all participating employers. Meade County made contributions to the plan
of $376.580 in 2019 and $429,623 in 2018. There have been no significant changes that affect the
comparability of 2019 and 2018.

In the R&S Plan, a “zone status” determination is not required, and therefore not determined, under the
Pension Protection Act (“PPA”) of 2006. In addition, the accumulated benefit obligations and plan assets
are not determined or allocated separately by individual employer. In total, the R&S Plan approximately 80
percent funded at January 1, 2019 and 2018 based on the PPA funding target and PPA actuarial value of
assets on those dates. Because the provisions of the PPA do not apply to the R&S Plan, funding improvement
plans and surcharges are not applicable. Future contribution requirements are determined cach year as part
of the actuarial valuation of the plan and may change as a result of plan experience.

At the December 2012 meeting of the I&FS Committee of the NRECA Board of Dircctors, the Committee
approved an option to allow participating cooperatives in the Retirement Security (“R&S™) Plan ( a defined
benefit multiemployer pension plan) to make a prepayment and reduce future required contributions. The
prepayment amount is a cooperative share, as of January 1, 2013, of future contributions required to fund
the R&S Plan’s unfunded value of benefits carned to date using Plan actuarial valuation assumptions. The
prepayment amount will typically equal approximately 2.5 times a cooperative’s annual R&S Plan required
contribution as of January 1, 2013. After making the prepayment, for most cooperatives the billing rate is
reduced by approximately 25%, retroactive to January 1, 2013. The 25% differential in billing rates is
expected to continue for approximately 15 years. However, changes in interest rates, asset returns and other
plan experience different from that expected, plan assumptions changes, and other factors may have an
impact on the differential in billing rates and the 15 year period.

Two prepayment options were available to participating cooperatives:
1. Use current assets to make the prepayment over a period of not more than 4 years, or.

2. Borrow funds sufficient to make the prepayment in a lump sum, with the prepayment of the
borrowed amount determined by the loan’s amortization schedule.
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NOTES TO FINANCTAL STATEMENTS
Note 6. Pension Plan (Continued)

On February 14, 2013, RUS issued a memorandum to all of its borrowers regarding the proper accounting
treatment of the R&S Plan prepayment. RUS stipulated that the prepayment shall be recorded as a long-term
prepayment in Account 186, Miscellancous Deferred Debits. This prepaid expense shall be amortized to
Account 926, Employee Pensions and Benefits, over a ten year period. Alternatively, RUS borrowers may
calculate the amortization period by subtracting the cooperative’s average age of its workforce as provided
by NRECA from the cooperative’s normal retirement age under the R&S Plan, up to a maximum period of
20 years. If the entity chooses to finance the prepayment, interest expense associated with the loan shall be
recorded in the year incurred as is required under the RUS Uniform System of Accounts (“USoA™).

On March 15, 2013, Meade County made a prepayment of $1,656,757 to the R&S Plan. Meade County is
amortizing this amount over 10 years.

Note 7. Savings Plan

Meade County participates in the NRECA Savings Plan, a multiemployer, defined contribution master
pension plan. All employees are eligible to participate in the Savings Plan upon completion of six (6) months
employment. Eligible employees, as defined above, participate in the Savings Plan with Meade County
contributing 3% of annual base pay, and the employee contributing from 1% to 3%. Non-eligible employees,
as defined above, participate in the Savings Plan with Meade County contributing 12% of annual base pay,
and the employee contributing from 1% to 3%. Employer contributions to the plan were $372,109 for 2019
and $337,914 for 2018, and vest immediately.

Note 8, Postretirement Benefits

Meade County sponsors a defined benefit plan that provides medical insurance coverage to retirees by
contributing 50% of the cost of a single policy. For measurement purposes, an annual rate of increase of
8.5%, then decreasing by 0.5% per year until 5% per year, in the per capita cost of covered health care benefit

was assumed. The discount rate used in determining the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation was

4.5%. A portion of the net periodic benefit cost is allocated to construction of electric plant. There have been
no significant changes that affect the comparability of 2019 and 2018.

The funded status of the plan is as follows:

2019 2018
Projected benefit obligation $ (L2359%46) § (1,226,329
Plan assets at far value - - - -
Funded status $ (1235946) S (1.226329)
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NOTES TO FINANCTAL STATEMENTS
Note 8. Postretirement Benefits (Continued)

The reconciliation of the benefits obligations of postretirement benefits are as follows:

2019 2018
Benefit obligation - begnning of period $ 1226329 $ 1623239
Actuarial adjustment -- (446,819)
Net periodic benefit cost:
Service cost 200 53,485
Interest cost 55,001 64,115
Net periodic benefit cost: 55.201 117,600
Benefit payments to participants (45,584) (67,691)
Benefit obligation - end of period $ 1,235,946 $ 1226329

Amounts included m accumulated comprehensive mcome:

Unrecognized actuarial gain $ 383,981 $ 365,696

Effect of 1% merease m the health care trend:
Postemployment benefit obligation $  1.303.000
Net periodic benefit cost $ 58,235

Projected retiree benefit payments for the next five years are expected to be as follows: 2020 - $64,500; 2021
- $60,000; 2022 - $57,000; 2023 - $51,000; 2024 - $41,000.

Note 9. Related Party Transactions

Several of the Directors of Meade County and its President & CEO are on the Boards of Directors of various
associated organizations. Meade County occasionally sells old vehicles to employees and others.

Note 10. Commitments

Meade County has various other agreements outstanding with local contractors. Under these agreements,
the contractors will perform certain construction and mamntenance work at specified hourly rates or unit cost,
or on an as needed basis. The duration of these contracts are one to three years.

Note 11. Contingencies

Meade County, on occasion, is subject to various lawsuits that arise from the normal course of business.

Meade County’s management does not believe the outcome of these cases will have a material effect on the
financial statements.

= % =

Jomes, DNale @ Mattmgly FLIC



JNM

Jones, Nale & Mattingly PLC

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors
Meade County Rural Electric Cooperative Corporation
Brandenburg, Kentucky

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govermment Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the Umted States, the financial statements of Meade County Rural Electric Cooperative Corporation (the
Cooperative). which comprise the balance sheet as of October 31, 2019 and the related statements of revenue and
comprehensive income, changes in members” equities and cash flows for the year then ended, and related notes to
the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated January 17, 2020.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Cooperative’s internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances
for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Cooperative’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Cooperative’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A maferial weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, vet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that
we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Cooperative’s financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of
our audit, and accordingly. we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report 1s solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards

in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not sunitable for any
other purpose.

(JM V\eke ¥ m% Pec_

Louisville, Kentucky
January 17, 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITII ASPECTS
OF CONTRACTUAL AGREEMENTS AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
FOR ELECTRIC BORROWERS

To the Board of Directors
Meade County Rural Electric Cooperative Corporation
Brandenburg. Kentucky

We have audited. in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General ol the Uniled States, the [nancial statements of Meade County Rural Ilectric
Cooperative Corporation (“the Cooperative™), which comprise the balance sheet as ol October 31, 2019, and
the related statements of revenue and comprehensive income, changes in members® equities. and changes in
cash flows for the year then ended. and the related notes to the financial statements. and have issued our report
thereon dated January 17, 2020. In accordance with Government Auditing Standards. we have also issued
our report dated January 17, 2020, on our consideration of the Cooperative’s internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certaimn provisions of laws, regulations. contracts and grant
agreements and other matters. No reports other than the reports referred to above and our schedule of findings
and recommendations related to our audit have been furnished to management.

In connection with our audit, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that the Cooperative
failed to comply with the terms, covenants, provisions, or conditions of their loan, grant, and security
instruments as set forth in 7 CFR Part 1773, Policy on Audits of Rural Utilities Service Borrowers and
Grantees, §1773.33, nsolar as they relate to accounting maltters as enumerated below. However, our audit
was nol directed pnmarily toward oblaining knowledge ol noncompliance. Accordingly, had we performed
additional procedures, other matters may have come to our attention regarding the Cooperative’s
noncompliance with the above-referenced terms. covenants, provisions, or conditions of the contractual
agreements and regulatory requirements, insofar as they relate lo accounting matters. In connection with our
audit, we noted no matters regarding the Cooperative's accounting and records to indicate that the Cooperative
did not:

Maintain adequate and effective accounting procedures:

Utlize adequate and fair methods for accumulating and recording labor. material. and
overhead costs, and the distribution of these costs to construction. retirement. and
maintenance or other expense accounts:

Reconcile continuing property records to the controlling general ledger plant accounts:
Clear construction accounts and acerue depreciation on completed construction;

Record and properly price the retirement of plant:

Seek approval of the sale, lease, or transler ol capital assels and disposition of proceeds for
the sale or lease ol plant, malerial, or scrap;

Maintain adequate control over material and supplies;

Prepare aceurate and timely Financial and Operating Reports:
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e Obtain written RUS approval to enter into any contract for the management, operation, or
maintenance of the borrower’s system if the contract covers all or substantially all of the
clectric system;

e Disclose material related party transactions in the financial statements, in accordance with
requirements for related parties in generally accepted accounting principles;

e Record depreciation in accordance with RUS requirements (“See RUS Bulletin 183-1,
Depreciation Rates and Procedures™);

e Comply with the requirements for the detailed schedule of deferred debits and deferred
credits, which are listed below; and

¢ Comply with the requirements for the detailed schedule of investments, of which there were
none.

The deferred credits are as follows:

Consumer advances for construction $570.597

The purpose of this report 1s solely to communicate, in connection with the audit of the financial statements.
on compliance with aspects of contractual agreements and the regulatory requirements for electric borrowers
based on the requirements of 7 CFR Part 1773, Policy on Audits of Rural Utilities Service Borrowers and
Grantees. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Ofm T ele ¥ mmjc& Pee

Louwisville, Kentucky
January 17, 2020
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Jomes, INate & Mattmaly PLC



Meade County Rural Electric Cooperative Corporation
Case No. 2020-00131
Streamlined Rate Adjustment Procedure Pilot Program
Filing Requirements / Exhibit List

Exhibit 9

807 KAR 5:001 Sec. 16(4)(b)
Sponsoring Witness: John Wolfram

Description of Iiling Requirement:

If the utility has gross annual revenues greater than $3,000,000, the written testimony of
each witness the utility proposes to use to support its application.

Response:

In support of its Application, Meade County provides written testimony from three (3)

withesses:

e Mr. Martin Littrel, Meade County’s President and Chief Executive Officer, whose
testimony is included at Exhibit 7;

e Ms. Anna Swanson, Meade County’s Vice President of Accounting and Finance, whose
testimony is included at Exhibit 8; and

e Mr. John Wolfram, expert consultant with Catalyst Consulting LLLC, whose testimony is

included with this Exhibit 9.

Case No. 2020-00131
Application - Exhibit 9
Includes Attachment (159 pages)
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DIRECT TESTIMONY
OF
JOHN WOLFRAM

L INTRODUCTION

PLEASE STATE YOUR NAME, BUSINESS ADDRESS, AND POSITION.
My name is John Wolfram. I am the Principal of Catalyst Consulting LLC. My
business address 1s 3308 Haddon Road, Louisville, Kentucky, 40241.

ON WHOSE BEHALF ARE YOU TESTIFYING?

[ am testifying on behalf of Meade County Rural Electric Cooperative
Corporation (“Meade County™).

BRIEFLY DESCRIBE YOUR EDUCATION AND WORK EXPERIENCE.
I received a Bachelor of Science Degree in Electrical Engineering from the
University of Notre Dame in 1990 and a Master of Science Degree in Electrical
Engineering from Drexel University in 1997. 1 founded Catalyst Consulting LLC
in June 2012. T have developed cost of service studies and rates for numerous
electric and gas utilities, including electric distribution cooperatives, generation
and transmission cooperatives, municipal utilities and investor-owned utilities. I
have performed economic analyses, rate mechanism reviews, special rate designs,
and wholesale formula rate reviews. From March 2010 through May 2012, I was
a Senior Consultant with The Prime Group, LLC. I have also been employed by
the parent companies of Louisville Gas and Electric Company ("LG&E") and
Kentucky Utilities Company ("KU"), by the PIM Interconnection, and by the
Cincinnati Gas & Electric Company. A more detailed description of my

qualifications is included in Exhibit JW-1.
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HAVE YOU EVER TESTIFIED BEFORE THE KENTUCKY PUBLIC
SERVICE COMMISSION (“COMMISSION™)?

Yes. I have testified in numerous regulatory proceedings before this Commission.
A listing of my testimony in other proceedings is included in Exhibit JW-1.

I1. PURPOSE OF TESTIMONY

WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF YOUR TESTIMONY?
The purpose of my testimony is to: (1) describe Meade County’s compliance with
the streamlined rate filing procedures; (ii) describe Meade County’s rate classes,
(111) describe the calculation of Meade County’s revenue requirement; (1v) explain
the pro forma adjustments to the test period results; (v) describe the Cost of
Service Study (“COSS™) process and results; (vi) present the proposed allocation
of the revenue increase to the rate classes; (vii) describe the rate design. proposed
rates, and estimated billing impact by rate class, and (vii1) support certain filing
requirements from 807 KAR 5:001.
ARE YOU SPONSORING ANY EXHIBITS?
Yes. [ have prepared the following exhibits to support my testimony:

Exhibit TW-1 — Qualifications of John Wolfram

Exhibit JW-2 — Revenue Requirement & Pro Forma Adjustments

Exhibit JTW-3 — COSS: Summary of Results

Exhibit JTW-4 — COSS: Functionalization & Classification

Exhibit TW-5 — COSS: Allocation to Rate Classes & Returns

Exhibit JW-6 — COSS: Billing Determinants

Exhibit JW-7 — COSS: Purchased Power, Meters, & Services
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Exhibit JW-8 — COSS: Zero Intercept Analysis

Exhibit JTW-9 — Present & Proposed Rates

III. RATE FILING PROCEDURE

IS MEADE COUNTY FILING THIS CASE UNDER THE RATE CASE
PROCEDURE FOR ELECTRIC DISTRIBUTION COOPERATIVES
DESCRIBED IN CASE NO. 2018-0047?

Yes. As described in the Application, Meade County is filing this case under the
procedures set forth in the Commission’s Order dated December 20, 2019 in Case
No. 2018-00407 (“Streamlined Rate Order™). For convenience I will refer to this
procedure as the “streamlined” rate filing procedure or process.

DOES MEADE COUNTY COMPLY WITH ALL OF THE
REQUIREMENTS SET FORTH IN THE COMMISSION’S ORDER ON
THE STREAMLINED PROCEDURE?

Yes. Meade County meets all of the elements of the streamlined process set forth
in the Commission’s order. These requirements are discussed in the body of the
order and are enumerated in Appendix A to the order.

Appendix A sets forth the Prerequisites for Use of the Streamlined
Process. Meade County complies with each of these items. The requirements of
the other parts of Appendix A are also met; I will describe how Meade County
complies with the “Excluded Items for Ratemaking Purposes™ in Part E later in

my testimony.
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IV.  CLASSES OF SERVICE

Q. PLEASE DESCRIBE THE CUSTOMER CLASSES SERVED BY MEADE
COUNTY.

A Meade County currently has members taking service pursuant to five major rate
classifications plus two more for lighting. The major classes include Rate 1 —
Residential, Rate 2 Small Commercial, Rate 3 Three Phase, Rate 3A Three-Phase
Time of Day less than 1,000 kVA, and Rate 4 Three-Phase Time of Day greater
than 1,000 kVA. Rate 5 is for Private Outdoor Lighting and Rate 6 is for Street
and Highway Lighting. Meade County’s residential members comprise 74 percent
of test year energy usage and 74 percent of test year revenues from energy sales,
as shown in the following table.

Table 1. Rate Class Data (2019)

Rate Class Members kWh % Revenue %
1. Residential 27.716 | 334.594.628 7433 | $40,017423 | 74.07
2. Small Commercial 1,699 | 24.557.917 5.46 | $3,175,580 5.88
3. 3 Phase 397 72,854,700 16.18 $8,386,898 15.52
So 3 Phase 0999 KVA 4 668,885 0.15 $76.771|  0.14
4. Large 1000 KVA TOD 3 6,686,242 1.49 $802,425 1.49
5. Private Outdoor Lighting - 9,737,149 2.16 $1,441,817 2.67
6. Street & Hwy Lights 6 1,045,113 0.23 $124.757 0.23
TOTAL 29,825 [ 450,144,634 100 | $54,025,672 100

Q. DOES THIS DATA DIFFER FROM THAT INCLUDED ON MEADE

COUNTY’S RUS FORM 7 FOR 2019?
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Yes. The data here differs slightly from that reported on the RUS Form 7 due to
the treatment of outdoor lighting. On the RUS form and other financial filings,
the amounts associated with Rate Schedule 5, Private Outdoor Lights, are
included in the rate classes of the premises at which the lights are located — e.g.
the usage and revenue for an outdoor light owned by a residential consumer
would be included in the residential usage and revenue totals. For my analysis, |
adjusted all of the private outdoor lighting amounts out of the other classes and
included them in the Rate Schedule 5 rate class. The total amounts do not change
but the individual rate class amounts in my analyses will differ slightly from the

RUS Form 7 amounts due to the removal of these lighting amounts.

V. REVENUE REQUIREMENT

PLEASE DESCRIBE HOW MEADE COUNTY’S PROPOSED REVENUE
INCREASE WAS DETERMINED.

Meade County is proposing a general adjustment in rates using a historical test
period. The proposed revenue increase was determuned first by analyzing the
revenue deficiency based on financial results for the test period after the
application of certain pro forma adjustments described herein. The revenue
deficiency was determined as the difference between (1) Meade County’s net
margins for the adjusted test period without reflecting a general adjustment in
rates and (i1) Meade County’s net margin requirement necessary to provide an
Operating Times Interest Earned Ratio (“OTIER™) of 1.85 for the adjusted test

period. Based on the adjusted test year, the revenue deficiency is $1,408,426. Due
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to rate rounding, Meade County is electing to seek an overall increase of
$1,404,525, or 2.6%, which yields an OTIER of 1.83.
WHAT IS THE HISTORICAL TEST PERIOD FOR THE RATE CASE
APPLICATION?
The historical test period for the filing is the 12 months ended December 31,
2019.
HAVE YOU PREPARED AN EXHIBIT THAT SHOWS HOW MEADE
COUNTY’S REVENUE DEFICIENCY IS CALCULATED?
Yes. Exhibit JW-2 shows the calculation of Meade County’s revenue deficiency.
PLEASE EXPLAIN THE REVENUE DEFICIENCY CALCULATION IN
EXHIBIT JW-2 IN DETAIL.
The purpose of Exhibit JW-2 is to calculate the difference between Meade County’s
net margin for the adjusted test year and the margin necessary for Meade County to
achieve the lower of a 1.85 OTIER or a 4 percent overall increase, pursuant to the
limits established in the Streamlined Rate Order. Page 1 of the exhibit presents
revenues and expenses for Meade County for the actual test year, the proposed pro
forma adjustments, the adjusted test year at present rates, and the adjusted test year
at proposed rates. The revenues include total sales of electric energy and other
electric revenue.

Expenses are tabulated next. The Total Cost of Electric Service is shown on
line 22. Total Cost of Electric Service includes operation expenses, maintenance
expenses, depreciation and amortization expenses, taxes, interest expenses on long-

term debt, other interest expenses, and other deductions. Utility Operating Margins
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are calculated by subtracting Total Cost of Electric Service from Total Operating
Revenue. Non-operating margins and capital credits are added to Utility Operating
Margins to determine Meade County’s Net Margins.

The TIER, OTIER, Margins at Target TIER, and Revenue Deficiency
amounts are calculated at the bottom of page 1 of Exhibit JW-2.
WHAT IS THE OTIER FOR MEADE COUNTY FOR THE ADJUSTED
TEST YEAR?
Exhibit JW-2 shows on Line 35, Column (4) that the OTIER for the adjusted test<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>